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Abbreviations

K

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following RNARERAN BRXERHTEIN THEBAR

meanings unless otherwise specified:

"Articles of Association”
[ ETRAA]

“Board”

B2

“Company”

[AnE ]

"Companies Ordinance”
WNCIEESYN

“Directors”

[E%]

"Group”
[AR&EBE]

"

“Listing Rules

[ TR

"PRC”
[E)

"SFO"
(78 % KR 5B

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 52 P |

"HK$"and “HK cent”
[T &AL

"Uss”
ESH

"o
[% ]
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AN B

articles of association of the Company
RARZEBERAME

Board of Directors of the Company

ARABZEEE

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
REBFEZEERER AT

Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong
ERBENFE22E

directors of the Company

ARB2E=R

the Company and its subsidiaries
RAFRHEME R A

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt X FTeE 5 B R B

The People’s Republic of China
FEARIEME

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B LB GO (BB IEGIE5715)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERIMBR AT

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BITREN - BEREEES

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of America
En ENBARBEOEEEY

per cent.
Bt
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Corporate Information

G-

TRADING OF SHARES
Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1102)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1603-5, 16th Floor
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch

China CITIC Bank International Limited

Yingkou Coastal Bank Co., Ltd.

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

AUDITOR

Zhonghiu Anda CPA Limited
(appointed on 15 November 2018)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.enviro-energy.com.hk

* The above information is updated to 24 April 2019, the latest
practicable date before printing of this annual report.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to the shareholders the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RESULTS

In 2018, following the economic growth in the Greater Bay Area
benefited from the recent PRC national policies promulgated by the
government of the PRC for the region, the revenue from trading
building materials was significantly increased as a result of the growth
in demand for properties and constituted the major stream of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue from its continuing operations of approximately
HK$885,871,000, increased by over 16.25 times from the previous
year (2017: HK$54,531,000). Loss attributable to owners of
the Company from continuing operations was approximately
HK$14,531,000 (2017: HK$50,855,000) and basic loss per share of
HKO0.16 cent (2017: HK0.65 cent). The decrease in loss from continuing
operations was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in fair value loss on
investment properties from HK$20,866,000 in 2017 to HK$5,369,000
in 2018 and (ii) the interest income of HK$21,755,000 (2017: nil) from
loan receivables recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROSPECTS

It is the intention of the management to step up its effort to improve
the financial performance of the existing businesses of the Group
and to explore investment opportunities in the properties investment,
investment holding and trading of building materials segments or other
new segments with good prospects with the view to bring substantial
value to the shareholders of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all shareholders,
investors, bankers, business associates and customers for their
continuing support to the Group, my fellow directors for their valuable
services and all staff members for their hard work during the past year.

Li Sen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN KD

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group engaged in
properties investment, investment holding and trading of building
materials businesses.

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS OF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Properties investment

The Group’s investment properties comprise 40 commercial units
situated in Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC, with gross floor
area of approximately 14,182 square meters. In September 2017, 13
commercial units have been contracted to be disposed to two parties
who are third parties independent of and not connected with the
Company and its connected person(s) (within the meaning ascribed
to such term in the Listing Rules) (“Independent Third Parties”) for a
total consideration of RMB29,326,000. In January 2018, 4 commercial
units were contracted to be disposed of to other two Independent
Third Parties for a total consideration of RMB13,139,000. All of
these disposal transactions have completed during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group owned investment properties, which comprise the fourth
floor and the fifth floor of a building situated in Dalian city, Liaoning
province, the PRC with a total gross floor area of approximately 2,843
square meters. During the year ended 31 December 2018, these
properties were disposed to the Independent Third Parties at a total
consideration of HK$87,329,000.

The Group also owns a piece of land of gross floor area of
approximately 4,320 square meters together with a twelve-floor
property erected thereon with gross floor area of approximately
17,800 square meters. This property is situated in Yingkou city,
Liaoning province, the PRC and is currently being leased out for rental
income.

In August 2018, the Group disposed of two parcels of land located
at Bai Sha Wan, Bayuquan district of Yingkou city, Liaoning province,
the PRC with gross floor area of approximately 59,245 square meters
through the disposal of entire equity interest in Yingkou Hailanggu
Travel Co., Limited (& O/&RAKIEERAF]) (“Hailanggu”) to two
Independent Third Parties of the Company at a total consideration of
RMB2 (equivalent to approximately HK$2). The disposals have been
completed during the year ended 31 December 2018. Details on the
disposal are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 28
August 2018 and 4 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W R D

The Group, through Yingkou Haida Property Service Company
Limited (& EWEREER2R) (“Haida”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, owned a piece of land with gross
floor area of approximately 5,000 square meters and two blocks of
buildings with a total gross floor area of approximately 5,022 square
meters. The said lands and the properties were situated in Yingkou
city, Liaoning province, the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group disposed of the said lands and the properties through
the disposal of entire equity interest in Haida to an Independent
Third Party of the Company at a consideration of RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,352,000). The disposal was
completed on 19 June 2018. Details of the disposal are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's rental income
amounted to approximately HK$4,270,000 (2017: approximately
HK$3,967,000). The properties investment segment recorded
valuation loss of approximately HK$5,369,000 (2017: approximately
HK$20,866,000) on its investment properties, as a whole, this
business segment recorded a profit of approximately HK$17,222,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: loss of approximately
HK$21,932,000).

Investment holding

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had no revenue and
profit from investment holding (2017: approximately HK$977,000 and
HK$9,629,000).

Trading of building materials
The Group has commenced its building materials trading business
since the second half of 2017 through its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Qianhai Shitong Supply Chain (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(rArEttdEMEsE ORJ1) BRAF") (“Qianhai Shitong”). The
Board considered that this new business can broaden revenue base of
the Group which would be in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the trading of building
materials segment contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$881,601,000 (2017: approximately HK$49,587,000), representing
99.5% of total revenue from continuing operations. The segment
contributed a gross profit of approximately HK$4,890,000,
representing 53.4% (2017: approximately HK$2,894,000) of total
gross profit from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN KD

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had over 10 key
customers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. Among these
customers, two are subsidiaries of companies listed in Hong Kong and/
or in the PRC. During the same year, the Group had about 15 key
suppliers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. Among these
suppliers, two are subsidiaries of companies listed in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group is optimistic about the prospect of its building materials
trading business because when demand for properties grows in
the Greater Bay Area, demand for building materials is expected to
increase correspondingly. The Company plans to continue developing
this business segment by recruiting additional staff and adopt
more proactive approach to select and solicit quality suppliers and
customers. Following the economic growth in the Greater Bay Area
benefited from the recent PRC national policies promulgated by the
government of the PRC for the region, demand for properties is
expected to increase, which will in turn stimulate the revenue from
trading of building materials, bringing a turnaround to profit in the
long run.

Subsequent to completion of acquisition of the investment properties
in the Northeast Region by the Group in the second half of 2016, the
economy development of Liaoning Province did not grow as expected,
and lagged behind the national economy growth. In such connection,
certain investment properties had been vacant for some time due
to macroeconomic factors. In 2017, the Group did not acquire
any investment properties in the Northeast Region. The Group will
continue to develop its properties investment business segment given
its vast potential and opportunity. Driven by the market potential in
the Greater Bay Area and taking advantage of the extensive business
network of the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Sen, the Group has been
and is reviewing its property investment portfolio with the aim to seize
new properties investment opportunities in Shenzhen City and Greater
Bay Area.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W R D

As at 31 December 2018, all investments in securities or bonds were
disposed of. Going forward, the Company will continue to actively
explore the potential for other strategic investments and capture the
opportunities and balance the investment risks.

On 14 March 2018, Enviro Energy Finance (BVI) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Quick Master Company Limited (“QMS”) at a consideration
of HK$450,000. The acquisition was completed on 14 March 2018.
QMS holds a money lenders licence under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Board
considers that the acquisition provides a prime opportunity to diversify
the Group’s business scope, broaden the Group’s sources of income
and achieve better return to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board is of the view that the acquisition would be in the interests of
the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

Looking ahead, China’s economy is expected to maintain steady in
the first half of 2019 as a result of the economic and financial reform
driven by the States with the recent PRC national policies related to the
“Greater Bay Area”. The markets of property investment and trading
of building materials in Mainland China are also expected to grow at a
steady pace. With this background, the Board is reviewing the portfolio
of investment properties and the Group may acquire investment
properties in Greater Bay area and/or Hong Kong when opportunities
arise. The Board is fully confident in the future business development
of the Group.

The Board will continue to look out for opportunities to make
investments in any new business when suitable opportunities arise to
diversify revenue streams of the Group and strengthen the Group’s
financial position, and thereby maximising the benefits of the
shareholders as a whole.

To raise fund for the potential investments in the future, the Group
is actively considering to explore different avenues for strengthening
the Group’s cashflows by obtaining new bank borrowings and carrying
out fund raising including, but not limited to, rights issue, open offer,
placing of new shares and issuance of other convertible bonds.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN KD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Results

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$885,871,000 (2017:
approximately HK$54,531,000) from its continuing operations,
representing an increase by over 16.25 times when compared with
the year ended 31 December 2017. The significant increase in revenue
was mainly attributable to the start up of trading of building materials
business at end of 2017.

The Group’'s gross profit from its continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$9,160,000 (2017:
approximately HK$7,537,000) with an average gross profit margin of
1.0% (2017: 13.8%), which resulted in an increase of approximately
HK$1,623,000, representing an increase of approximately 21.5%
when compared with the year ended 31 December 2017.

The loss from continuing operations was approximately
HK$14,531,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$50,855,000). The decrease in loss from continuing
operations was mainly attributable to (i) decrease in fair value loss on
investment properties from HK$20,866,000 in 2017 to HK$5,369,000
in 2018 and (ii) the interest income of HK$21,755,000 (2017: nil) from
loan receivables recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Loss from the discontinued operations was nil for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$43,045,000).

The overall net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$14,531,000 (2017:
approximately HK$93,900,000), representing a decrease of losses by
approximately HK$79,369,000 when compared with the year ended 31
December 2017. Both the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2018 were HK$0.16 as
compared with HK$1.21 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Bt 7% B B

BExE
HE-_TZ-\F+_A=+—HILFE K&£E
B A XTS5 4R A A 49885,871,0007% 7T
(ZZT—+%F : 454,531,000 7T)  BEHE-ZF
—+tF+ A=+ —HLFEEMBIE16.25(F -
WABZENDEEHR T —EFREARRSE
REMKEIE HET -

HE-_Z-—N\F+_A=+T—BHLFE X%
EHECE ¥R 2T AB49,160,0008 L (ZF
—-t 4 : 497,537,000 7T) + FHEMNEE1.0%
(ZZF—t%F:13.8%) * #N%71,623,0005 T -
ERE T+ HF+_A=+—HIEEEMNY
21.5% o

HE-Z—)\F+_A=+—"HLEE BFEL
LR EIE4) 514,531,000 7L (Z B —+4F ¢
#950,855,000/8 JT) ° 35 4B 45 & 3 1% B 18 K08 R
DHEEHROEEDERI R BERIBH2017F
20,866,000 JT B 2> £20184F 5,369,000/ 7T &
(IVEBE—ZEZ—-N\F+_A=+t—RIFE®ER
REEREZZF B UM A21,755,0008 T (==
—tF )

HE-Z-)N\F+-A=+—HILEE B&IL
R EBAT (ZZT—+F : 443,045,000
BT e

RAFEENEEEE "S- N\FE+_A=+—
AIEFEREEFESG L4 /14,531,000 T
— T — 4 : 493,900,000 T) c WEH = —
T—+tF+_A=Z+—RHALFEZEERD
#979,369,0008 T - REZ =T —N\F+=A
=+ —HIEFE AREEBABLREFEL
ERERIEREER  SRERNRBEEHEY A
01687 RBE-_Z—+HF+-_A=+—B81
FEANAI21BTT -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W R D

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 31 December 2018,
approximately HK$462,283,000 comprising trade deposit paid in
advance of approximately HK$293,824,000 (2017: approximately
HK$230,676,000) and receivables of approximately HK$134,864,000
from disposal of investment properties and assets classified as held
for sale (2017: nil). The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on
current assets of approximately HK$462,283,000 (2017: approximately
HK$619,648,000) over current liabilities of approximately
HK$236,451,000 (2017: approximately HK$577,169,000), was about
1.96 at 31 December 2018 (2017: 1.07).

the Group had current assets of

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current liabilities decreased
by 59% to approximately HK$236,451,000 (2017: approximately
HK$577,169,000) over last year and the decrease was primarily due
to the bank borrowing of approximately HK$59,198,000 released
through the disposal of subsidiaries, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$185,977,000 and loan of approximately HK$62,331,000 from a
related company settled during the year ended 31 December 2018. As
at 31 December 2018, all bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$184,425,000 (2017: approximately HK$429,600,000) were
secured, denominated in Renminbi, bore interest of fixed rate and
were due within one year.

As at 31 December 2018, the equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$575,791,000 (2017:
approximately HK$603,238,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$2,123,000 (2017: approximately HK$154,140,000),
representing 98.6% decrease mainly due to the repayment of bank
borrowings of approximately HK$185,977,000 during the year ended
31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the debt to equity ratio and net debt to
equity ratio of the Group, which were calculated by dividing total
interest-bearing debt by total equity and dividing total interest-bearing
debt less bank balances and cash by total equity, were approximately
32% (2017: 71%) and 32% (2017: 46%) respectively.

With the amount of liquid assets on hand and unutilised loan facility,
the management is of the view that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operational needs.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As set forth in the section headed “Business Review” in this annual
report, the Group disposed of entire equity interest in Haida and
Hailanggu during the year ended 31 December 2018 and the disposals
were completed during the year ended 31 December 2018. Details on
the disposals are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 May 2018, 28 August 2018 and 4 December 2018 respectively.

Save as the above, there were no other material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Group had no significant investments held during the year ended
31 December 2018.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a convertible bonds
subscription agreement for the issue of 15% convertible bonds due
2020 with Huajun Group (Asia) Limited in the principal amount of
HK$50 million which are convertible into 844,594,595 shares upon
conversion of the convertible bonds at the exercise price of HK$0.0592
per share. Up to the date of this annual report, the issue of convertible
bonds is not completed. Details of the issue of convertible bonds are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31 January 2019.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
SUBSCRIPTION

A subscription agreement dated 25 October 2017 was entered
into between the Company and the subscriber in respect of the
subscription of 1,507,900,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at
the subscription price of HK$0.13 per share. On 7 November 2017, the
subscription of new ordinary shares under the general mandate was
completed with a total of 1,507,900,000 new ordinary shares being
subscribed, raising net proceeds of approximately HK$196,027,000.
Further details of the subscription of new shares are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 October 2017, 27 October
2017 and 7 November 2017 respectively.

The table below sets out the proposed applications of the net proceeds
from the subscription and actual usage up to 31 December 2018:

REBEABREFHEAR

ARAFEREBAGTLESHMAE-_ZT—L+E+A
ZT+RAZREHE AR EBEERABESR
0.1378 7T R#1,507,900,000 % A A B3 L@ -
RZTE—+F+—AL8 BE—REERET
LML E e 0 A ££1,507,900,000 85T % 8 A%
EERE - FIERIBFEELA196,027,0004 7T ©
EBERBEIHIR D 2 —FFBE A RERERQF
BfA-_Z—+F+A-+hHA —B—+4&+
B-++tBE-_ZT—+F+—AtBZAHR-

TREFIRBEIBAMSFODFE BT RERE
E_Z-N\FET+A=T—RBZERRBRS:

Actual usage

Proposed up to

application 31 December 2018

BE-ZE-N\F

+=-A=+—H

BER® ZEBRAR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

Investment holding business WERRES 6,400 6,400
Future projects or investment* ARRBEHILE* 160,000 160,000
General working capital —pREEEe 29,627 29,627
196,027 196,027

* Future projects or investment mainly included the investment in trading * RRBESIREFEREREAREEMHES

of building materials business
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Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debts divided by total
equity as of the end of each period. Gearing ratio was 32% as at 31
December 2018 (2017: 56%).

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties of the Group
with carrying amount of approximately HK$177,936,000 (2017:
approximately HK$424,380,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
borrowings.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group mainly earned
revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi and United
States dollar and no hedging measures had been undertaken. The
management will continue to monitor closely the Group's foreign
exchange risks by entering into forward contracts and utilising
applicable derivatives to hedge out foreign exchange risks when
considers appropriate.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have significant capital
commitments (2017: nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have significant
contingent liabilities (2017: nil).

Employees and Remuneration Polices

The Group had 21 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC as at
31 December 2018 (2017: 12 employees). The Group implements
remuneration policy, bonus and share options schemes to ensure that
pay scales of its employees are rewarded on performance-related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s remuneration strategy.
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RISK FACTORS

The Group has identified and is facing a number of significant risks
during the year ended 31 December 2018. Some of these risks are
ongoing factors which the industry has to cope with in medium to long
term. Other risk factors are specific to the Group.

1. Economic Risk

The global economic conditions and the state of international
financial and investment markets, including the economy,
financial and investment markets of the United States,
Mainland China and Hong Kong, of which the Group has
no control, have significant influences on the business and
financial performance of the Group. The management policy
to mitigate this risk is to diversify the Group’s business and
to diversify its investments (where possible) within the same
business.

2. Market Risk

The Group's trading business of building materials is operating
in a competitive environment that puts pressure on the revenue
and profitability of this business. The management policy to
mitigate this risk is to continue to put effort in enlarging the
market share and enhancing the market competitiveness of this
business by various means.

3. Environmental Risk

The Group is constantly exposed to inherent risks such as
pollution, mechanical breakdown of machinery, adverse
weather conditions, fire or other calamity. During the period
of potential development of any properties, the Group
would expose to potential risks such as pollution, adverse
weather conditions or fire etc. Any of these factors may
cause disruptions to the Group’s operations. The Group may
also be liable for compensation payable as a result of these
unpredictable events which may adversely affect its financial
performance.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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4, Customer Risk

The Group has been relied on a small number of customers
in its trading business. This has been limiting the Group's
bargaining power on credit terms and discount rate. The
Group may not be able to significantly expand its customer
base in the short term which may adversely affect its financial
performance.

5. Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to financial risks relating to foreign
currency, interest rate, equity price, liquidity and credit risk in
its ordinary course of business. For further details of such risks
and relevant management policies, please refer to note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements for details.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
December 2018, there were no significant dispute between the Group
and its employees, customers and suppliers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. In order to reduce
the degree of environmental damage when developing the Group’s
business, the Group strictly complies with the local laws, rules and
guidance in relation to environmental protection.
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The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance, the principles of which are to
uphold integrity, transparency and accountability in all aspects of
business and to ensure that affairs are conducted in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations. It is believed that good corporate
governance is fundamental to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
(the "Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2018 except for the following deviation and compliance
with reason as explained:

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Deviation and Compliance

On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li") was both the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considered that Mr. Li has in-depth knowledge and experience in the
property investment related business in the PRC and therefore he is the
most appropriate person to take up these two roles. After reviewing
the Board's structure in 2018, Mr. Li has been re-designated as a Co-
Chief Executive Officer and Mr Zhou Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou") has
been appointed as a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
9 November 2018. On 27 November 2018, Mr. Li resigned as a Co-
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Zhou has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealing in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
Specific enquiries have been made with the directors and they have
confirmed their compliance with the Own Code during the year ended
31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six directors,
including three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Sen (Chairman).
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO")) and
Mr. Wei Junging and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INED(s)”), namely Mr. Wen Guangwei, Dr. Hou Chaohui and Mr.
Jiang Maolin. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors Profile” section on pages 37 to 40 of this annual report.

Mr. Lin Sen is the president of Shenzhen City Oriental Ginza Group
Company Limited (“Oriental Ginza"”). Mr. Zhou Xuesheng is a vice
president of Oriental Ginza. Mr. Wei Junging is the assistant president
of Oriental Ginza.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save for the aforesaid, there
is no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships between the Chairman, CEO and among members of the
Board.
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The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. The Board EEeTHASFRLBTORAEH EFERN
held four regular Board meetings during the year ended 31 December B2 N\F+-_A=1t—HIFEEL7TNHN
2018. The attendance of individual directors at the regular Board K€ - TRFISESN - N\FERIT2E
meetings and general meetings during 2018 is set out in the following FellenBREAS Y HFELE
table:
Number of attendance
HERE
Board Meetings General Meetings
EEggE BRRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Sen FRELE 4/4 11
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng BEEEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Wei Junging MESEAE 3/4 11
Mr. Zhang Yuanging RTESRE (RZE—NEF—H N/A A~ 8 N/A iE
(resigned on 23 January 2018) —+=H#T)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Wen Guangwei XHERE (RZZ—tFNA 3/4 1/1
(appointed on 25 August 2017) “+HBEERE)
Dr. Hou Chaohui EEEFLT (RZZ2—-/N\FN\A=+ 1”1 N/A NiE A
(appointed on 30 August 2018) AEZT)
Mr. Jiang Maolin ZEMEE (RZE2—N\F+A N/A 38 N/A i
(appointed on 25 October 2018) Z+HBERE)
Mr. Chao Li Bukt (WZZE—N\$E+B=-+xh 3/4 171
(resigned on 25 October 2018) HEHE)
Mr. Chiang Bun BardE (RZE—N\FNA=1+H 2/3 11
(resigned on 30 August 2018) BHE)
Ms. Leung Pik Har Christine 2EEZL (RZE—-—NF—A N/A T3 B N/A TiEH
(resigned on 23 January 2018) ~+=HEHT)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have RBE_Z-N\F+_A=+—RHLFE EF
participated in the approval of routine and operational matters of the MBE AR SENMAHRAX 2 EERER -
Company by way of written resolutions circulated to them together REARRBZARME ([RAIME]) (EH R -

with supporting documents and briefings from the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”). The Directors receive
at least 14 days’ prior written notice of a regular Board meeting and
may propose matters for discussion to be included in the agenda. The
agenda together with board papers are sent to the Directors at least
three days prior to a regular Board meeting.
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The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors the Group's
business strategies and policies, strategic decisions and directions,
annual budget, and other major corporate matters. Besides, the Board
delegated the management team, led by the CEO, with the authority
and responsibility for the daily operations and administration of the
Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed. The Board is briefed on all legislative,
regulatory and corporate governance developments and the Board
has regard to them when making decisions. The Company Secretary,
together with the Board, are also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of listed issuers under the
Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. In addition, more than one-third of
the composition of the Board consisted of INEDs, so there is strong
element of independence in the Board to exercise independent
judgment. The Company has received from each INED an annual
written confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs have
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with terms of the guidelines.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of directors’ liability.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEO") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li Sen
(“Mr. Li") was both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Li has in-
depth knowledge and experience in the property investment related
business in the PRC and therefore he is the most appropriate person
to take up the two roles. After reviewing the Board’s structure, Mr. Li
has been re-designated as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and Mr Zhou
Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou") has been appointed as a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 9 November 2018. On 27 November 2018,
Mr. Li resigned as a Co-Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Zhou has been
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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As at the date of this annual report, the position of the Chairman
of the Board is held by Mr. Li and the position of CEO is held by Mr.
Zhou. The Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied
with.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
twelve months and subject to retirement by rotation and re- election in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Any
newly appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the Group’s businesses and the statutory regulatory obligations
of a director of a listed company. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated
on developments in statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. The
Company has provided timely technical updates, including the briefing
on the amendments on the Listing Rules and the news released
published by the Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefings
and professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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In compliance with the Code Provision A.6.5 during the year, Directors
have provided with relevant seminar and reading materials to keep
them informed of the latest updates in the relevant market and
changes on the legal and regulatory environment. The records of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by
the Company Secretarial Department with areas of training activities
listed out as follows:

RAFEAN - BEETAMRA65(F BT
E=METN e RHEXRRSANTRENS
B & HH B A RERINERRENZRHE(L - &
EEMEIZ2BILE AR ANERRE R
B RENSBIEBEER DT

Reading materials
relevant to the
Company'’s business
or director’s duties
and responsibilities

Attended
in-house seminar
conducted by
the Company

BIEEERAT

ZEEREERE HERLD TR
Name of Director EEnE KRB EHEBNER WAREHANE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Sen (Chairman) EREE(ER) 4 v
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (CEQ) BB A S (AT IR AB L) v/ v
Mr. Wei Junging MEEEE v v
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHTES
Mr. Wen Guangwei MR EEAE v/ v
Dr. Hou Chaohui EEBEHLTO v N/A i
Mr. Jiang Maolin @ ZE M ED v N/A 3
Remarks: e
v/ = attend =HE
o appointed on 30 August 2018 M RZE-N\FNA=+HEZF
@ appointed on 25 October 2018 @ RZE—N\F+AZ+RBEZF
COMPANY SECRETARY REWE
Mr. Tsang Shu Kei was appointed as the Company Secretary on 8 June BEELER-_FT-N\FAANABERERAF
2018. WE -

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tsang Shu Kei
had undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BY 2B

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the independent auditor B2 \F+_A=+—HLFE BIZ

provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Company BE AR N AR A T E R IE X BUR 15 K BB
with remunerations as follows: & :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAT

Audit for current year RFEZH 1,050 2,400

Non-audit service FE 1% HUAR 75 0 195

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established several committees. The authority and duties
of the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”),
Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) are set out in written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code. The terms of reference of both the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been revised and adopted by the Board
on 28 December 2018. The terms of reference of all the Committees
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. All committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

"Remuneration

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wen Guangwei, Dr. Hou Chaohui and Mr.
Jiang Maolin, with Mr. Wen Guangwei as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management. The Audit Committee meets at
least twice a year in reviewing the interim and annual reports of the
Company before submission to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with management and external
auditors and reviews their reports. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Audit Committee met twice in reviewing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial information for
the six months ended 30 June 2018, and the internal control, risk
management and corporate governance issues related to financial
reporting of the Company. The record of attendance of each member
at the committee meetings is set out below.

EREES

RAFHAY BRZBEH=-2BIIFNTE
EAIOLREE  REEE L REXAEL)E
o MXABREERBERZBEGIRE -

EREERZIERERBRHRERANEEZH
BRMIEF AR AR EZEREAREIR 2K - &
RZEEBFRIBITMAEHE  UNREXTE
EEHREMBHAARRPHRFERERS

ERZEeTHETEERIINERZSMEE LE
MERSE HBEZE-Z—N\F+ZA=+—HLHF
E BERZECERITMASH USHEZEZ
T—+tFF+ A=+ BHUEFEZEREMBER
R BHEZZE—N\FRAZ+TBHLERERAZERE
ERERASEVBEMUAREBARRYERR
ZAMEE  BREERPEEREFE - ZFKE
HRZESERITHIANRTX -

Number of
Members attendance
RE HE R B
Mr. Wen Guangwei XHEFE 2/2
(appointed on 25 August 2017) (RZZ—tFNAZT+HBEZRT)
Dr. Hou Chaohui BEHEEEL 1/1
(appointed on 30 August 2018) (RZE—N\FNA=THEZT)
Mr. Jiang Maolin ZERMEE N/A 38 F
(appointed on 25 October 2018) (RZBE-NF+AZ+HBEEME)
Mr. Chao Li BIAEE 2/2
(resigned on 25 October 2018) (R N\E+A-_+HBHET)
Mr. Chiang Bun $EE SR A 171
(resigned on 30 August 2018) (RZE—NFNA=+THET)
Ms. Leung Pik Har Christine REEL T N/A 71 i
(resigned on 23 January 2018) (R=ZZT—-—NEFE—-A=+=HEF)
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Dr. Hou Chaohui, Mr. Wen Guangwei
and Mr. Jiang Maolin, with Dr. Hou Chaohui as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should consult with the Chairman on
its remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors, and may
access to independent professional advice if necessary. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include, among others,
the recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy,
the review and approval of management’'s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and
the determination, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended 31
December 2018 to review and approve the remuneration packages
of directors. During the process, no individual director was involved
in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration. The record of
attendance of each member at the committee meetings is set out

FHWEES

RAFHRAY  FMEZEEH=RBIINTE
E(AERBERL  XOEBEEREFXMEL)E
K MEEBEELAFMEESIE -

THEZE e R EMRITEENTMERZAE
BBEERE FHNEESRAUSKEBEVEEER
R-FWEZESGZETEREA(EFRE)BREAA
RIESMHINERR R ARRBILERME
BRENEFFIFMERME SR ES
WHABEESATRES R BIZmR RitE
ERENTFNESE UREESeEEST &
EERAITE SN E TS

BE_Z-/\F+-_A=1+—HIL

REaENEHRIESEZH MG
B HUMEAYRENEESEBEEEARNG Z2H

REEEEZZLHHN T -

below.
Number of

Members attendance

KB R

Dr. Hou Chaohui FEHEEL 11
(appointed on 30 August 2018) (RZFE—N\FNA=Z+HEZF)

Mr. Wen Guangwei MHERE 2/2
(appointed on 25 August 2017) (R=ZZ—tFNAZ+HBEZME)

Mr. Jiang Maolin ZIRMEE N/A 7T~ A
(appointed on 25 October 2018) (R=ZE—N\F+A-+HHEZE)

Mr. Chao Li .m_Lf‘EEE 2/2
(resigned on 25 October 2018) (R—ZTBE—NE+A-t+HEBEE)

Mr. Chiang Bun SR S 171
(resigned on 30 August 2018) (R=ZZ—N\EFENA=+HEE)

Ms. Leung Pik Har Christine %Egﬁi N/A 3
(resigned on 23 January 2018) (RZZE—N\F—-—AZ+=H8F)

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Jiang Maolin, Mr. Wen Guangwei
and Dr. Hou Chaohui with Mr. Jiang Maolin as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive officer.

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the diversity of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that the policy will be
implemented effectively.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the year ended 31
December 2018 to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, assess the independence of INEDs and review the Board
Diversity Policy and nominate INED. The record of attendance of each
member at the committee meetings is set out below.

REEES

RAFHAH REZBEERE=RBILIFH
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FATEE BN UHETAEHEZEES
UEEE(LERER RITHRAS) BEERE

REZEQEEHNEZE-_Z—/\F+-A=+—
BlEFEzEFeZ L Y ITREHESES
ZTACBRABREEBRRBEERER
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FERTTMASEAEHEFS 2B AR
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EZRETUCBHRARREBILIFATES - I
BHFZE@gRZCBHzNTXX -

Number of
Members attendance
K& R E
Mr. Jiang Maolin EZEMEE N/A 73 A
(appointed on 25 October 2018) (RZE—-NF+AZ+HEBEZME)
Mr. Wen Guangwei NHEEE 2/2
(appointed on 25 August 2017) (RZZE—tFNAZ+HBEZE)
Dr. Hou Chaohui EHEEL A
(appointed on 30 August 2018) (R=ZZ—N\FNA=+HEZHF)
Mr. Chao Li BN LE 2/2
(resigned on 25 October 2018) (R=ZZ—NFE+A=+HAFT)
Mr. Chiang Bun B A 1”1
(resigned on 30 August 2018) (RZZT—NFENA=+HET)
Ms. Leung Pik Har Christine REELTT N/A 7 i
(resigned on 23 January 2018) (R—ZZB—-NE—A=-+=BFF)
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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NOMINATION POLICY
The Board of the Company has resolved on 28 December 2018 to
adopt the following Nomination Policy:

1. The Nominee Committee will:

1.1 review and monitor the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

1.2 identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

1.3 assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”, and each an “INED"”) and where
the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it should set out
in the circular to shareholders (“Shareholders”, and
each a “Shareholder”) and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

1.3.1 the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual should
be elected and the reasons why it considers the
individual to be independent;

1.3.2 if the proposed INED will be holding their
seventh (or more) listed company directorship,
why the Board believes the individual would still
be able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

1.3.3 the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

1.3.4 how the individual contributes to diversity of the
Board.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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1.4 review the diversity of Board members periodically
which can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience;

1.5 make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; and

1.6 assist the Board in the development and review of the
Board’s diversity policy and directors’ nomination policy,
as appropriate; and review the measurable objectives for
the implementation of the Board’s diversity policy and
monitor progress towards the achievement of such.

The Company’s process for appointing a Director

2.1

Approach and procedures for the Board to appoint a
Director

2.1.1 Nomination Committee considers the candidates
based on merit having regard to the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives and then makes recommendations
to the Board as appropriate;

2.1.2 Executive Directors’ appointment will be made
through a service contract with a term of service
continues unless and until terminated by either
party by giving to the other three months’ period
notice in writing;

2.1.3 Non-executive Directors’ (“NEDs”, and each
a "NED") appointment will be made through
a formal letter of appointment with a term of
twelve-month period which automatically renews
for successive twelve months periods unless
terminated by either party in writing prior to the
expiry of the term;

EfmTEEEXNEZ T A&
BEBZERZES 2% (EL
R MR Fik - IERBEE
SRHEELER

REFEEAENEEUREE
CERRE R RITHAR) RIS
GER R Py

BEEESHEMBTEETENS
TEBERRERESNRE - i
TEEFENZ TR GIE A
BEBFETRN  UAREFER
BLERMNER -

RAREREEFHNMIE

2.1

ExeZ 82 EMRER

211 RAEAEREMARS
HRAL - ARIBABEAR
B N ERRSRIEE
EAEFEE  LAEFS
RHABORS

212 WOTESZZEHEBER
RBIFIZ T RIBEEX - T
RIS FHIE R B L BRIE
MEEEF AR
H=EAzELEMBHMT
AL

213 JEMTEFEZZESEBE
RRBFTL—MEER -
Hi+ @A - mERIEEA—
IRMERERRTAZ EEH
gk BRERERESA
PEH+ @R :

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

29



30

Corporate Governance Report

A=

fi= #ﬁl:u

2.1.4

2.1.5

2.1.6

Retiring NEDs, including those who have served
as NEDs for a period of 9 consecutive years,
are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. For
the avoidance of doubt, (a) the 9-year period
for determining the eligibility of an NED for
nomination by the Board to stand for election
at a general meeting would count from his/her
date of first appointment as an NED until the
date of the forthcoming annual general meeting
when his/her current term of service will expire
at the end of that meeting; and (b) an NED who
has been serving on the Board for a period of 9
consecutive years or more may continue to hold
office until expiry of his/her current term;

Serving more than 9 years could be relevant to
the determination of a NED’s independence. If
an INED serves more than 9 years, his further
appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders of
the Company. In addition to the receipt of their
confirmation of independence, the papers to
Shareholders accompanying that resolution
should include the reasons why the Board
believes he is still independent and should be re-
elected;

Newly appointed Directors approved by the
Board are subject to election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting following the
appointment (in case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an
additional to the Board), but he shall not be
taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation in case he retires at an annual general
meeting; and

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Existing Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years but are eligible for re-
election. This applies to one-third of existing
Directors according to the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to
retire and not to offer himself for re-election.

2.2 Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for

election as a Director

2.2.1

2.2.2

2.2.3

If a Shareholder of the Company wishes to
propose a person other than a retiring director
for election as a director of the Company at a
general meeting, the Shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the Shareholder,
of his/her intention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected; and

These notices should be lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, during a period
commencing no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting provided that such period shall be at
least seven days.

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board through the
Company Secretary at Room 1603-5, 16th Floor,
Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

2.1.7
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2.3 Approach and procedures for Shareholders’ approval to
appoint a Director at the general meeting

2.3.1 Proposed Director appointment is considered as
an individual resolution at the general meeting;

2.3.2 Shareholders will approve the election or re-
election of Directors by Ordinary Resolution at
the Company’s general meeting; and

2.3.3 Any Director so appointed shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the
Company (in the case of filling a causal vacancy)
or until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting, but he shall
not be taken into account in determining the
Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation in case he retires at an annual
general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity on
the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board’s composition, a number of perspectives which
include race, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional experience, knowledge,
skills, length of service, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates will be taken into consideration. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision is based on merit and contribution that the candidates will
bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the board.

The Board will take opportunity to increase the proportion of female
members over time when selecting and making recommendation on
suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure
that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with
different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company’s corporate governance duties are carried out by the
Board pursuant to the following terms of reference adopted by the
Board:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

(0) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensures that
the consolidated financial statements have adopted the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report section of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems are in place for
the Group.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with reference to Internal Control and Risk Management
— A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The systems are designed to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to meet the
business objectives.

The Group believes that the people and the actions it takes are the
core elements of the risk management and internal control systems.
To support this notion, the Group facilitates training to its staff to
strengthen their awareness of risk and capability to manage risks.
During the year, the Board together with the Audit Committee,
reviewed the adequacy of aspects such as resources, staff qualifications
and experience, and were satisfied with the results of the review.

The followings have been established and executed to ensure there
are appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems within the Group:

o control environment including organisational structure, limit of
authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

o risk management self-assessment and internal control review
conducted from time to time by external consultants and the
Group;

o appropriate risk management measures such as written policies

and procedures; and

o effective information platforms to facilitate internal and
external information flow.

In view of the qualified opinion of the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Company understands the importance of
improving its internal control procedures. On 30 May 2018, the
Company engaged AVISTA PRO-WIS Risk Advisory Limited (“AVISTA")
as its internal control consultant to conduct a review of the Group’s
internal control system for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
for the three months ended 31 March 2018, including the Group's
revenue and receipt cycle, trading and procurement cycle, inventory
cycle, expenditure cycle, financial reporting cycle, cash management
and treasury cycle, property investment and development cycle (the
“Internal Control Review"”), and to make recommendations to the
Company for this purpose.
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The first review on internal control review report was circulated on
28 September 2018. The Company is now reviewing the report and
gathering the management responses from the subsidiaries of each
finding as mentioned in the report and the first review report could be
finalised once the Company responded and replied. Most of remedial
measures are not implemented and the time table for follow-up review
is subject to further discussion with the management of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Group which includes
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars, is
disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

The Company also acknowledges that general meetings are valuable
forums for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders
and members of the Board and committees are encouraged to attend
and answer questions at the general meetings.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the directors or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the directors
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of the Company
at a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
shall send a written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected.
These notices should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong or the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, during a period commencing no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting provided that such period shall be at least seven
days.

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board through the Company Secretary at Room 1603-5, 16th
Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy adopted by the Company
is publicly available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board has suggested to adopt a dividend policy to provide
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) with regular
dividends (the “Dividend Policy”). The Company considers stable and
sustainable returns to Shareholders to be our goal and endeavours to
maintain a progressive dividend policy. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board takes
into account the Group’s earnings performance, financial position,
investment requirements and future prospects. There can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
year. If a dividend is proposed or declared, there can be no assurance
that the dividend amount will be as contemplated above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2018. A copy of the Company’s
latest constitutional documents is publicly available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The biographical details of Directors as at 29 March 2019, the date of
this annual report, are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li"”), Chairman

Aged 55, joined the Company as an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board in September 2017 and appointed as Chief
Executive Officer in January 2018 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li has been re-designated to Co-
Chief Executive Officer on 9 November 2018 and resigned as Co-
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 27 November 2018. Mr.
Li holds a Bachelor’s degree from Chengdu University of Technology
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) majoring in radiation
geophysics.

Mr. Li is a president of Shenzhen City Oriental Ginza Group Company
Limited (literal translation of the Chinese name) (“Oriental Ginza"),
a company established in the PRC which is principally engaged in,
among other things, real estate development, hotel management
and property management in the PRC. Mr. Li was awarded as (i) one
of the “China’s 100 Elites for Economy” by China Economy Daily
(literal translation of the Chinese name); (i) one of the “Shenzhen
City’'s 100 Outstanding Entrepreneurs” by Shenzhen Entrepreneur
Association (literal translation of the Chinese name) in 2008; and (iii)
the “Influential Figure in Real Estate” by Boao Real Estate Forum in
2012.

Mr. Li has not held any other directorship in other public companies,
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

Mr. Li is deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company,
as disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO” in the Report of the
Directors.

RZZE-NF=ZA-TNABEIKAFRAY) - &
EZRBEFHBHINMT

BTES
EREE(ERED, 27

55 MZB—tHFNAAMARRRHERTE
EREERER UR_Z-N\F-AEZER
TBEE  TRARAZEMNEBARZES -
“E-N\Ft+—-ANBFEEERBERST R FE
FIBRHEEN _—E—N\Ft+—HA-+EHDE
EARRBFEITHAE B - FTEEREREA
RAME ([HE])REETABETEM > T
TRET D ER ©

FRERFINTRTREEBERAR ([RITR
Bl 2@ ZARRTEKY - FERHBEH
=2 (HPER)FHERSE BEEERMEERE
X -FREROETPELERREERF
REBBHELADIZ — (MR N\FER
YRR EES R L DEER100% ]
Z— RN —_E-—_FEBBEHERETS
[BETERAZENAY] -

FRENBRBELFEBTBIFIMERMBFLSMS L
MEEMAR A REEEMNEMESR -

HMEEGRET [RIFE S RS EROIB R
BErRalER] —HARE FAERKRAK
RBEZEERR -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

37



38

Directors Profile

ESEHN

Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou"), Chief Executive Officer

Aged 55, joined the Company as Executive Director in November
2017. Mr. Zhou has been appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer on
9 November 2018 and re-designated to Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 27 November 2018. Mr. Zhou holds a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Heilongjiang University in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"). As a standing council member of Shenzhen Association
of Trade in Services CRYIT RIS & 5 1% &) since August 2013, he
has senior executive managerial experience in a number of large and
medium-size enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Zhou was accredited as an
economist by the Department of Personnel of Heilongjiang Province
(BEETA ASEEE)in 1991, and he was approved by the Bureau of
Personnel of Shenzhen Municipality* GZ Y™ A %= B) and obtained
a certificate from the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province* (B & AZEEE)in 2001 certifying that he was qualified as
an economist. Mr. Zhou is a vice president of Shenzhen City Oriental
Ginza Group Company Limited* CRIITT R FEEEEBBR A,
a company established in the PRC which is principally engaged in,
among other things, real estate development, hotel management and
property management in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas for the last three years.

Mr. Wei Junqing (“Mr. Wei")

Aged 53, joined the Company as Executive Director in September
2017. Mr. Wei is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Wei holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Southwest University in the PRC and a master’'s degree of
business administration with a specialization in executive business
administration from American World University by distance learning
program conducted at Wuhan University in the PRC. Mr. Wei is also a
qualified accountant registered with the Ministry of Finance in the PRC.
Mr. Wei is currently the assistant president of Oriental Ginza.

Mr. Wei has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas for the last three years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wen Guangwei (“Mr. Wen")

Aged 55, joined the Company as Independent Non-executive Director
in August 2017 and is the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wen holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from the
Finance School of Renmin University of China and a doctor’s degree
in management from the China Business School of Renmin University
of China. He is a qualified Certified Public Accountant in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. Wen was previously a professor
of Renmin University of China and officially retired in 2015. With
effect from 22 June 2018, he has been appointed as an independent
director of ZEHEREZ RN AR AT (China Resources Double-Crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 600062) whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wen has not held any other directorship
in other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas for the last three years.

Dr. Hou Chaohui (“Dr. Hou")

Aged 43, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company since 30 August 2018. He is a deputy professor for
the finance department of Faculty of Economics of Minzu University
of China. He specializes in the fields of financial policy and capital
market. He had obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from
University of Hebei, a master's degree in political economics from
University of Hebei and a Juris Doctor degree from Minzu University of
China majoring in economics of Chinese ethical minorities.

Dr. Hou is a qualified high school instructor for economics in the
People’s Republic of China and practitioner certified by Asset
Management Association of China for carrying out fund activities. Dr.
Hou also acts as the Deputy Secretary (872 ) and Standing Director
(E1EIEZE) of China Ethnic Medicine Association (PR EE2ERE).

Dr. Hou has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas for the last three years.
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Mr. Jiang Maolin (“Mr. Jiang")

Aged 53, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since 25 October 2018. He has obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Laws from The Manchester Metropolitan University and
a master’'s degree in Commerce in Professional Accounting from
University of South Wales. He is currently a postgraduate student for
doctoral degree in Civil and Commercial Laws from Renmin University
of China.

Mr. Jiang is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a chartered management accountant
of The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a
chartered global management accountant of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants.

Mr. Jiang is currently the president of Qianhai Devin Capital
Management (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* (RE@EEARER(FINBRA
A]) and the director of HK Devin Capital Management Limited, Tin Tin
Capital Limited and lJinluo Capital Management Limited, respectively.
Mr. Jiang specializes in the financial and capital market. He has
previously worked for the Department of Prudential Supervision and
Industry Restructuring of China Securities Regulatory Commission
at China Securities Regulatory Commission and held various senior
managerial positions at Haitong Asset Management (HK) Limited,
Haitong International Management Services Co. Ltd and CCB
International Asset Management Limited respectively. Mr. Jiang was
also a chairman at Yuexiu Securities Holdings Co. Ltd.* (MiFEFHIE
& EBRAR]). Mr. Jiang is currently a responsible officer for type 9
(asset management) regulated activity under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") of Jinluo
Capital Management Limited (£2/8EXEIEFRAA]), which is a
licensed corporation to carry on type 4 (advising on securities) and type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

Mr. Jiang has not held any other directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas for the last three years.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of Group’s activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the
business, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.
These sections form part of this report of the Directors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 76 to 77.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in “Share Option
Schemes” section in this report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 80 and note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 84% of the Group's
total revenue from continuing operations and sales to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 30%.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases from the
Group's three largest suppliers accounted for approximately 81% of
the Group’s total purchases from continuing operations and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
53%.

As one of the Group’s five largest customers is an indirectly wholly
owned entity of Mr. Li Sen, being an executive director of the
Company and controls a company which is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, he is deemed to have interest in the said customer.
Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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EEGHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Sen (appointed on 15 September 2017)

Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (appointed on 7 November 2017)
Mr. Wei Junging (appointed on 15 September 2017)
Mr. Zhang Yuanging (resigned on 23 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wen Guangwei (appointed on 25 August 2017)

Dr. Hou Chaohui (appointed on 30 August 2018)

Mr. Jiang Maolin (appointed on 25 October 2018)

Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine (resigned on 23 January 2018)

Mr. Chiang Bun (resigned on 30 August 2018)

Dr. Chiao Li (appointed on 23 January 2018 and resigned
on 25 October 2018)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Dr. Hou
Chaohui and Mr. Jiang Maolin shall retire from their office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“2019 AGM"), being eligible,
Jiang Maolin will offer himself for re-election at the 2019 AGM while
Dr. Hou Chaohui will not officer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhou Xuesheng and Mr. Wei Junging shall retire from their office by
rotation at the 2019 AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the meeting.

Mr. Zhang Yuanging resigned on 23 January 2018 as executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine resigned on 23
January 2018, Mr. Chiang Bun resigned on 30 August 2018 and Dr.
Chiao Li resigned on 25 October 2018 as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. They have confirmed that they have no
disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the
Company need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders of
the Company.

The Company received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the
independent non-executive directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS PROFILE

Biographical details of directors of the Group are set out on pages 37
to 40 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of directors of the Company
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules:

1. On 3 August 2018, Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li”) has in his personal
capacity agreed on a voluntary basis to provide guarantee to all
private lenders and investors/ clients for the performance of the
payment obligations by some private group companies under
a notice issued by them on the same date. The arrangements
contemplated under the settlement proposal offered by Mr. Li
and the private group companies with the private lenders falls
under an event/events described in Rule 13.51(2)(j) and (I) of
the Listing Rules. Further details of the settlement proposal are
stated in the Company’s announcement dated 28 August 2018.

Mr. Li has been re-designated to Co-Chief Executive Officer on
9 November 2018 and resigned as Co-Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 27 November 2018.

2. Mr. Zhou Xuesheng has been appointed as Co-Chief Executive
Officer on 9 November 2018 and re-designated to Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 27 November 2018.
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Mr. Wen Guangwei (“Mr. Wen") has resigned as an
independent director of MER@ A ERMNBER AT (Leyard
Optoelectronic Co., Ltd) (stock code: 300296) (“Leyard”), on
29 December 2016 anddt REFEAZEEA S HEMEBEKD
HBR A" (Spearhead Integrated Marketing Communication
Group) (stock code: 300071) (“Spearhead”), on 21 April
2017. Both Leyard and Spearhead are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He has been appointed as an independent
director of =M & #5522 A% {5 B R A F)(China Resources Double-
Crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 600062) with
effect from 22 June 2018 whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wen is entitled to receive a director’'s fee of HK$270,000
per annum under his letter of salary increment with
the Company. The director’'s fee of Mr. Wen has been
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board on 31 August 2018.

Dr. Hou Chaohui (“Dr. Hou") entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company, pursuant to which he has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for
a term of twelve-month period, subject to the re-appointment
of Dr. Hou by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, which automatically
renews for successive twelve month periods unless terminated
by either party by two months’ written notice prior to the
expiry of the term. The directorship of Dr. Hou will be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company. Under the
appointment letter of Dr. Hou, he is entitled to a director’s
fee of HK$270,000 per annum which has been recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
based on Dr. Hou's qualifications and experience, his level
of responsibilities undertaken and the prevailing market
conditions. The director’'s fee of Dr. Hou will be subject to
annual review by the Remuneration Committee and the Board.

Dr. Hou has not held any other directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas for the last three years.
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Dr. Hou does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Hou (i) does not hold any
other positions in the Company or its subsidiaries; and (ii)
does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Jiang Maolin (“Mr. Jiang”) entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company, pursuant to which he has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for
a term of twelve-month period, subject to the re-appointment
of Mr. Jiang by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, which automatically
renews for successive twelve month periods unless terminated
by either party by two months’ written notice prior to the
expiry of the term. The directorship of Mr. Jiang will be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company. Under the
appointment letter of Mr. Jiang, he is entitled to a director’s
fee of HK$270,000 per annum which has been recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
based on Mr. Jiang’'s qualifications and experience, his level
of responsibilities undertaken and the prevailing market
conditions. The director’s fee of Mr. Jiang will be subject to
annual review by the Remuneration Committee and the Board.

Mr. Jiang has not held any other directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas for the last three years.

Mr. Jiang does not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mr. Jiang (i) does not hold any other positions in the
Company or its subsidiaries; and (ii) does not have any other
relationship with any directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ remuneration are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Other than as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company and the director’s core connected persons
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The purpose of each of the 2003 Share Option Scheme (hereinafter
defined) and the 2011 Share Option Scheme (hereinafter defined) is
to enable the Group to recognise the contribution of the participants
to the Group and to motivate the participants to continuously work to
the benefit of the Group by offering the participants an opportunity to
have personal interest in the share capital of the Company.

fE IR T &)

2003 F ME AR HERT & (EE R T X)) K201 FHE K
BAE(EER T EHEEALBE B RS2 HEE
EREEEARARABRAZEAAERD  RIHLEE
HASEZER  THBLREEEAREEY
Fl) 25 VB AT o

(1) Share option scheme adopted by the (1)) R-TBB=F—H-+HBEXK
Company on 25 January 2003 (“2003 Share NGRS oY) %E 2l ([ 2003
Option Scheme”) FHERESTE]D
On 25 January 2003, the 2003 Share Option Scheme was RZZE=F—A=+HA AR T?FEE%
approved pursuant to written resolutions of the Company. EMERZHEAAE2003FHEARE B -

Details of movement of the options granted under the 2003 —E-N\FF+_A=Z=F+—HILFE - $EF
Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2018 20035 HERRAERT B IR E F B aF 1B
were as follows: N
Movement in the 2003 Share Option Scheme 2003 F R AT 21 & B
Name or Exercise As at Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised As at
category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
i BR RoR-NF ; I it
SEEMAREN  RAAH d: h(fi% -B-H FREH ER%H R ERfiE TZA=t-A
HK
(%7)
Other employees
EfES
In aggregate 04/02/2010 04/02/2012 to 04/02/2020 0.3622 2,837,838" - (2,837,838) - - -
aif 04/0212012204/02/2020
09/07/2010 09/07/2012 to 08/07/2020 0.3947 2,837,838 - (2,837,838) - - -
09/07/2012%08/07/2020
5,675,676 - [5675676) - - -
Others
B
In aggregate 15/06/2009 15/06/2011 to 15/06/2019 0.5145 28,378,379" - - - - 28,378,379
st 15/06/2011Z15/06/2019
06/10/2009 06/10/2011 to 06/10/2019 0.5286 496,622 - - - - 496,622
06/10/2011%£06/10/2019
04/02/2010 04/02/2012 to 04/02/2020 03622 71,300,676" - - - - 71,300,676
04/0212012£04/02/2020
09/07/2010 09/07/2012 to 08/07/2020 03947 87,760,135 - - - - 87,760,135
09/07/2012%08/07/2020
187,935,812 - - - - 187935812
Total: 193,611,488° - (5,675,676) - - 1879358127

it
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Notes:

(M

2)

3

50% of the share options are exercisable in a period
commencing two (2) years from the date of grant and expiring
on the tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance
of 50% of the share options are exercisable in a period
commencing three (3) years from the date of grant and expiring
on the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

50% of the share options are exercisable in a period
commencing two (2) years from the date of grant and expiring
on the day falling one day preceding the tenth anniversary from
the date of grant. The balance of 50% of the share options are
exercisable in a period commencing three (3) years from the
date of grant and expiring on the day falling one day preceding
the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 187,935,812
(2017: 193,611,488) share options outstanding under the 2003
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 2.08%
(2017: approximately 2.14%) of the Company’s shares in issue
on that date.

Bt

3

S0%FE AR R B X H A HIMQ)FRZ
REEEEABHAFIEBRETE - &
T50% MR AR T AM=3)F&KZ
REERE BN TBEFIEHBTE-

50%RE AR R B X H HHIMQ)FRZ
REEREAHHAFAH —H ILHRET
8 o R 50% AR B A =(3)
FrzARERE AP HEFA—HLE
MM -

RZZE—N\FE+_A=+—8 AR27F
R #2003 5 FE AR 5T #1465 187,935,812
MERESRTE(ZZE—+F:
193,611,48817) * HERARAFRZH
ZEBEITRN#92.08% (ZF—+4F :
42.14%) ©
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(2)

Share option scheme adopted by the 2) R=ZBE——FFHH+Z=ZHEALXARD
Company on 12 May 2011 (“2011 Share AR BERESE ([20115F
Option Scheme”) BRESED
The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme which RABHEMAR—_E——FRAT+-_HET
was approved by shareholders in the Company’s annual general ZARRNBRERBEFRS FEREEZ
meeting held on 12 May 2011. Details of movement of the 201 FEERERE - BEZZT—N\F+=
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme for the A=1+—HIEFE  BEFE2011FHERE
year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows: BIRBzBIRESEEHFBOT
Movement in the 2011 Share Option Scheme 2011 B IR IEF &) B
Name or Exercise Asat Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exercised Asat
category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant  Exercise period per share 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
3 - BB RZF-NE 3 . . REE-NE
SEEHEAREN  RAAH t:d: 1{&% -A-H EREH ER%H R ERfiE TZA=t-H
(1)
Other employees
HfEE
In aggregate 23/06/2011 23106/2012 to 22/06/2021 0.3066 4,966,216 - (4,966,216) - - -
a3 23/06/2012222/06/2021
4,966,216 - (4,966,216) - - -
Others
B
In aggregate 23/06/2011 23/06/2012 to 22/06/2021 0.3066 64,347,974" - - - - 64,347,974
R 23/06/2012222/06/2021
311212012 311212013 10 30/112/2022 0.1149 1,064,189 - - - - 1,064,189
31112/2013230/12/2022
65,412,163 - - - - 65,412,163
Ié)tﬂ 79,378,379% - (4,966,216) - - 65412,163%

Notes: B -
M 50% of the share options are exercisable in a period (1) S0%HEREANEREBHE —(WFrRZ

commencing one (1) year from the date of grant and expiring
on the day falling one day preceding the tenth anniversary from
the date of grant. The balance of 50% of the share options are
exercisable in a period commencing two (2) years from the date
of grant and expiring on the day falling one day preceding the

tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

(2) As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 65,412,163 (2017:
70,378,379) share options outstanding under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, which represented approximately 0.72%
(2017: 0.78%) of the Company’s shares in issue on that date.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the

directors and chief executive of the Company, if any, in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions of directors in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

EERESTHRAERKR®D - HE
RORBEZZ2EZRER

RZB-NFF+-A=+—HB ARAEEFER
BITHRAR (WA) RAR B RE RN EE

(EERBZRMERPIEXVER) 2Bt - 18Rk
M REHP  BHEREES RS GO E3521%
FEARRRERMKRE LR AN 8+ Pk
MBETABFETRERR 5 2FETR (RET
AlDMERARARBIMzEEREAWT

EERALAROREBAROZRE

Number of Approximate
Capacity and Number of underlying % of
Name of director nature of interest shares held shares held Total shareholding
Frista BRER
BEEpR BN RERME FERGEE 43 & B EE Bak
Li Sen (“Mr. Li") Interest of controlled corporation 2,207,485,423 - 2,207,485,423 24.40%
(note 1)
FH(FEERE]D RER ARz ER (Hzt1)
Notes: Vo=
1. These interests were held by Able Victory, which was wholly owned 1. ZE S HAble Victory B E@mEER L

by Mr. Li. Mr. Li was the sole director of Able Victory. Accordingly,
Mr. Li was deemed to be interested in 2,207,485,423 shares of the
Company under the SFO. Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection
Investment Fund (“Hua Shang”) holds 1,459,396,000 shares of the
Company, representing 16.13% of the Company’s all issued shares.
Since Wonderland International Asset Management Company, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Wonderland, is the asset manager of Hua Shang,
therefore, the above mentioned 16.13% of shareholding should be
included in the shares that Wonderland is interested in the Company.
As disclosed in the FORM 2 - Corporate Substantial Shareholder
Notice, filed by Wonderland, on 5 November 2018 with Supplementary
Information* that followed by the announcement of inside information
made by the Company on 2 November 2018, the Company’s substantial
shareholder — Able Victory Enterprises Limited, controlled by the
Company’s Chairman and Executive Director Mr. LI Sen (ZF#), had
entered into a share charge in relation to the 2,207,485,423 (24.40%)
shares of the Company, in favour of Wonderland and another individual
on 2 November 2018 (“Existing Share Charge” or “First Share Charge”).
After the above event, Wonderland becomes one of the Chargees of the
Existing Share Charge in relation to the 24.40% shares of the Company.

2E WA - TN 4E BAble Victoryz E — &
FoRAW REEFFRPEGERD - FTHRER
W R%EAR AN E2,207,485,423 IR 19 2 #
# ° Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection
Investment Fund ([Hua Shang]) # B & X &
1,459,396,000/ & fp 2 #e &5 - & A2 A E ¥
TRAN16.13% HAERBZ2EME QA
Wonderland International Asset Management
Company&Hua ShangZ BEEIEA » MUIERTE
EEBAOAQAERR - Lill16.13% 5 E
HEERN - BEARARZ-ZZE-N\F+—A=
BRELAEAEEEZRAE  EBRRZZE—N
Fr—FHBEXMEAMAER M [ERE2 -
FERFBHIAKRE - AARBFERATE
EERGERHOARQT EZRFADle Victory
Enterprises Limited * ERZZE—N\F+—H=
BT - #52,207,485,423 (24.40% )
R EIR T ERZ((REROEMRIK[E IR
BRHERD RZ—BAA -ELREHZE
EERANF24.40%RENR B R EREA
Z—
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Subsequently, following the announcement pursuant to Issue of the
Convertible Bond under General Mandate (“Convertible Bond”) and
Rule 13.17 of the Listing Rules of the Company on 31 January 2019,
as disclosed in the FORM 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder
Notice, filed by Huajun Group (Asia) Limited on 1 February 2019, Able
Victory Enterprises Limited pledged 2,207,485,423 (24.40%) shares to
Huajun Group (Asia) Limited (“Second Share Charge”). Second Share
Charge will be executed upon the completion of the Convertible Bond
transaction and subject to Existing Share Charge/First Share Charge.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, and none of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children had any rights to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE
SFO

As at 31 December 2018, the following interests of more than 5% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions in the shares or underlying shares

of the Company

RAEQXTRODIEEAROGHRE

Number of Approximate %
Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interest shares held of shareholding
REREMH BN RERME FEROBE BAKRED L
Mr. Li Interest of controlled corporation 2,207,485,423 24.40%
Fh4E Eek NG (note 1)
(Bizz1)
Able Victory Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 2,207,485,423 24.40%
("Able Victory”) EREAA (note 1)
Able Victory Enterprises Limited (Htet1)
([ Able Victory )
Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection Beneficial owner 1,459,396,000 16.13%
Investment Fund (“Hua Shang”) ESHEAA (note 1)
Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection (Miat1)
Investment Fund ([ Hua Shang])
Wonderland International Financial Holdings  Supplementary information* 3,666,881,423 40.53%
Limited (“Wonderland") I Bk (note 1)
EEEARSRIZERBERAR ([EE]) (Mfat1)
Li, Stephen Hing Yue (“Mr. Stephen Li") Interest of controlled corporation 452,400,000 5.00%
Li, Stephen Hing Yue ([ Stephen Li%E 4 ]) SR N ol - (note 2)
(H1722)
Cool Legend Limited (“Cool Legend”) Beneficial owner 452,400,000 5.00%
Cool Legend Limited ([ Cool Legend ]) EmEB A (note 2)
(Hiat2)
BREBRERERAT

T \FFR

53



54

Report of the Directors

EEGHRE

Notes:

These interests were held by Able Victory, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Li. Mr. Li was the sole director of Able Victory. Accordingly,
Mr. Li was deemed to be interested in 2,207,485,423 shares of the
Company under the SFO. Hua Shang Consumer Premium Selection
Investment Fund (“Hua Shang”) holds 1,459,396,000 shares of the
Company, representing 16.13% of the Company’s all issued shares.
Since Wonderland International Asset Management Company, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Wonderland, is the asset manager of Hua Shang,
therefore, the above mentioned 16.13% of shareholding should be
included in the shares that Wonderland is interested in the Company.
As disclosed in the FORM 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder
Notice, filed by Wonderland, on 5 November 2018 with Supplementary
Information* that followed by the announcement of inside information
made by the Company on 2 November 2018, the Company’s substantial
shareholder — Able Victory Enterprises Limited, controlled by the
Company's Chairman and Executive Director Mr. LI Sen (%#%), had
entered into a share charge in relation to the 2,207,485,423 (24.40%)
shares of the Company, in favour of Wonderland and another individual
on 2 November 2018 (“Existing Share Charge” or “First Share Charge”).
After the above event, Wonderland becomes one of the Chargees of the
Existing Share Charge in relation to the 24.40% shares of the Company.

Subsequently, following the announcement pursuant to Issue of the
Convertible Bond under General Mandate (“Convertible Bond”) and
Rule 13.17 of the Listing Rules of the Company on 31 January 2019,
as disclosed in the FORM 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder
Notice, filed by Huajun Group (Asia) Limited on 1 February 2019, Able
Victory Enterprises Limited pledged 2,207,485,423 (24.40%) shares to
Huajun Group (Asia) Limited (“Second Share Charge”). Second Share
Charge will be executed upon the completion of the Convertible Bond
transaction and subject to Existing Share Charge/First Share Charge.

These interests were held by Cool Legend, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Stephen Li. Accordingly, Mr. Stephen Li was deemed to be
interested in 452,400,000 shares of the Company under the SFO.

The interests of Mr. Li and Able Victory in 2,207,485,423 shares of the
Company referred to above related to the same parcel of shares.

The interests of Mr. Stephen Li and Cool Legend in 452,400,000 shares
of the Company referred to above related to the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group adopted the following philosophies in determining its
emolument policy:

the Group adopts a performance driven policy so that each
individual is motivated to perform to the best he/she can;

. individual competence, contribution and responsibility are taken
into account when considering the remuneration level for each
employee;

o the Company offers provident fund, medical insurance and

leave benefits to provide basic coverage to staff for retirement,
sickness, rest and relaxation reasons, respectively;

° share option grants are made from time to time to better
link the corporate performance as reflected in the share price
performance and the contributions made by the staff in the
intermediate to longer time frame; and

o the economic factors and the affordability of the Group are
taken into account in coming up with the overall remuneration
budget for the Group.

The Group has also adopted a discretionary bonus scheme. Factors,
such as overall financial performance, the affordability of the Company
and individual performance, have been taken into account before
determining the entitlement of each qualified employee.

The determination of directors’ remuneration has taken into
consideration of their respective responsibilities and contributions to
the Company and with reference to market terms.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director or other officer
of the Company for the time being acting in relation to any affairs of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto provided that the indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty of the
above persons. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

A EmMERECRINAERAE (Qianhai Guoxing Finance Lease
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*), a company established in the PRC and
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“QH Finance"”)
and R ImAZRHEBR AT (Shenzhen Ruixunjia Information
Technology Company Limited*), a company established in the PRC
and an Independent Third Party which, however, had lending-
borrowing relationship with Dongyin Finance (including the DYF
Indebtedness owing to Dongyin Finance) (“the Borrower”) entered
into the loan agreement dated 1 May 2018 and entered into between
QH Finance and Borrower in respect of the grant of the Loan Facility
(“the Original Loan Agreement”) in respect of the facility of up to
RMB60 million which may be drawn by the Borrower and lent by QH
Finance pursuant to the Original Loan Agreement (“the Loan Facility”).
Under the Original Loan Agreement, the Loan Facility is agreed to be
available for drawdown from 1 May 2018 onward, and the maturity
date of the principal amounts so drawn under the Loan Facility is 31
December 2018. By the Supplemental Agreement 3 May 2018 and
entered into by QH Finance, the Borrower and JFIIITT SRR & BTN
APBRAFI(Shenzhen Dongyin Financial Holdings Company Limited*),
a company established in the PRC, in which Mr. Li has a controlling
interest (“Dongyin Finance”), the Borrower directed QH Finance to
make payment of the amounts drawn under the Loan Facility to
Dongyin Finance for the purpose of settling the indebtedness in the
sum of RMB66.5 million owing by the Borrower to Dongyin Finance,
some of which was repaid during the period from May to August 2018
through the application of the Loan Facility (“the DYF Indebtedness”).
During the period from May to August 2018, a total of approximately
RMB57.7 million was drawn by instalments under the Loan Facility and
paid by QH Finance (as directed by the Borrower) to Dongyin Finance
for repayment of the DYF Indebtedness.
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Since one of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
Loan exceeds 25%, but all the applicable percentage ratios are less
than 100%, the grant of the Loan Facility under the Original Loan
Agreement constitutes a major transaction under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. As at the date of the Supplemental Agreement, Dongyin
Finance was wholly owned by Shenzhen Guangshen Investment Group
Limited* ORI ERKE LB BR AT, in which Mr. Li had (and still
has) a controlling interest. Accordingly, Dongyin Finance was (and still
is) a connected person of the Company. As the drawings under the
Loan Facility were paid to Dongyin Finance for repayment of the DYF
Indebtedness, the Supplemental Agreement and the related drawings
pursuant to it are deemed to constitute a connected transaction
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Since one of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Loan
exceeds 25%, and the total value of the financial assistance plus any
monetary advantage to Dongyin Finance is more than HK$10 million,
the Supplemental Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are subject to the reporting, announcement, annual
review and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. Further details of the transactions are stated in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 October 2018.

QH Finance, the Borrower and Dongyin Finance entered into the
Tripartite Confirmation Agreement dated 24 December 2018,
pursuant to which, QH Finance is the Lender of the Loan while &3
Ml ZRHE AR A F)(Shenzhen Ruixunjia Information Technology
Company Limited*) is the Borrower of the Loan under the Original
Loan Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement, and the three
parties agreed that the Borrower shall repay the principal amounts
and accrued interests under the Loan directly into QH Finance’s
bank account in full instead of entrusting the repayment to Dongyin
Finance. As of 24 December 2018, the Lender had provided a principal
amounts of RMB57,735,450.83 under the Loan and accrued interests
of RMB4,554,716.75. The sum of the principal amounts and the
interests incurred is RMB62,290,167.58. On 24 December 2018, the
Borrower had repaid the above principal amounts and interests of the
Loan directly into the Lender’s bank account in full. The Borrower and
Dongyin Finance had fulfilled all of their obligations in respect of the
Loan and there is not any debt payable by the Borrower and Dongyin
Finance to the Lender.
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ISSUE OF THE CONVERTIBLE BOND UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

On 31 January 2019 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the conditional Subscription Agreement with Huajun Group (Asia)
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and an Independent Third Party (“the Investor”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue,
and Investor has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the Convertible
Bond in the aggregate principal amount of HK$50,000,000 at
the Issue Price. The punctual performance and observance by the
Company and Able Victory Enterprises Limited (“Chargor”), a company
incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and wholly owned by Mr. Li Sen, the Chairman and executive director
of the Company (“Mr. Li”) of its obligations under the Transaction
Documents were secured by (i) the Guarantee to be executed by
Mr. Li; and (ii) the Share Charge in respect of 2,207,485,423 Shares
owned by the Chargor, the Listco Shares, to be executed in favour
of the Investor by the Chargor, which is wholly owned by Mr. Li.
The Convertible Bond carry the right to convert into the Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Price of HK$0.0592 per Conversion Share
(subject to adjustment). Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised
in full at the Conversion Price, 844,594,595 new Shares, being
the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued to the Investor,
representing approximately 9.33% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Company’s announcement dated 31 January 2019
and approximately 8.54% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares,
assuming that there are no other changes in the share capital of the
Company from 31 January 2019 to the Closing Date. The Conversion
Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the General Mandate.
Accordingly, the issue of the Conversion Shares will not be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. Further details of the Convertible
Bond are stated in the Company’s announcement dated 31 January
2019.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as otherwise disclosed, none of the directors of the Company had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
at least 25% of the issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2018 except for the following deviation and compliance
with reason as explained:
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Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Deviation and Compliance

On 23 January 2018, Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li”) was both the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considered that Mr. Li has in-depth knowledge and experience in
the properties investment related business in the PRC and therefore
he is the most appropriate person to take up the two roles. After
review of the Board'’s structure, Mr. Li has been re-designed to Co-
Chief Executive Officer and Mr Zhou Xuesheng (“Mr. Zhou") has
been appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 9
November 2018. On 27 November 2018, Mr. Li resigned as Co-Chief
Executive Officer and Mr. Zhou has been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 168.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and have been duly approved by the Board under the
recommendation of the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS

Following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") as
auditors of the Company on 27 April 2018, Zhonghui Anda CPA
Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) was appointed as new auditors of the
Company with effect from 15 November 2018 to fill the casual
vacancy, and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there were
no other changes in the auditors of the Company during the past
three years. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 were audited by Zhonghui Anda
while the consolidated financial statements for the three preceding
years ended 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 were audited by PwC.
Zhonghui Anda will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of Zhonghui Anda as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Sen
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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GENERAL

The Directors are pleased to present the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2018
in compliance with the applicable code provision set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. Information
on the environmental and social aspects of the report is set out
below whilst information on the governance aspect is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 17. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company has complied with the “comply and
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

OVERVIEW

The Group has always placed significant emphasis in minimising
potential impact on the environment in conducting businesses, and in
faces of the challenges of climate changes the Group has integrated
Environmental, Social and Governance considerations into daily
operations, with a particular focus on maintaining closer connections
with stakeholders and taking on more responsibilities in the society.
Comprehensive assessments had been performed by the Group and
the Group believes that its existing businesses are not expected to pose
a material impact on the environment.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT AND ESG
STRATEGY

According to the requirements of ESG Guide, the Board has overall
responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting. During
the year, the Company has conducted internal and external materiality
assessments on the Company’s business (as reflected in 2018
Materiality Matrix of Enviro Energy). Taking into account the reporting
principles as set out in the ESG Guide, the nature of business and
principal activity of the Company, the general disclosures under the
aspects of Operating Practices and Social Area of the ESG Guide are
considered to be crucial to the Company’s investors, stakeholders and
businesses.
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2018 Materiality Matrix of Enviro Energy

External assessment (impact on stakeholders)
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Given the fact that the existing businesses of the Company does
not pose a material impact on the environment, therefore, the three
aspects of key performance indicators (KPI) under the Environment
Area, namely Emissions (Aspect A1), Use of Resources (Aspect A2)
and the Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3), are not
considered material for disclosure according to the requirements of
the ESG Guide. However, the Company recognises the importance of
environmental protection and always supports its employees to protect
the environment and use of resources and energy in the most efficient
and effective manner on one hand and considers this as one of the
assessment criteria for assessing and selecting suppliers and business
partners on the other hand.

Environmental
Emissions

Existing businesses of the Group do not produce significant amount
of waste and thus the Group does not have significant air and
greenhouse gas emissions, and none of the operations of the
Group have significant discharges into water and land, nor generate
significant hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. The Group however
considers management of impacts on the environment as one of the
assessment criteria in assessing and selecting suppliers and business
partners.

Use of resources

Among the existing businesses that the Group currently involves in,
all of which do not require consumption of a significant amount of
resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. The Group
does acknowledge that effort in promoting efficient usage of resources
and therefore make efforts in preparing and introducing policies on
efficient usage of resources in operations. Besides, the Group also
considers this as one of the assessment criteria for assessing and
selecting suppliers and business partners.
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According to the requirements of the ESG Guide, the Company has RIBFRR L RERESINRTE  ARRFEE

quantified the resources usage of its offices operation in Hong Kong,
Shenzhen and Yingkou respectively. The results are summarized as JRER -

follows:

4tﬁ%%”ﬁ/\%\°

RYNREOZMAELENE
ERB AT

Hong Kong Office 2018
BEERAE =&
(Electricity) (EH)
Electricity Consumed (kWh)' B2 (FRK)! 22,509
Electricity Consumed per gross floor area (KWh/m?) GEEEEREE (TREE, FEHK) 4.28
CO2 Emission from Electricity Consumed (kg) FREEE 2 —f/biEEm (F7) 17,782
(Paper) (#|)
Paper used (tonne) FB Ak (ME) 1.572
(Water) (7)
Water Consumption? AK&?
Notes: i &E
1. Consumption from the central building services including electricity 1. BHRPFRBFREMEB LT REANE
usage due to the elevator and central air-conditioning are excluded HTBEEARFINEERRANRN AT TE
from the reporting scope since it was not within the operational FBERSHER -
boundary of the Company.
2. Consumption from the central building services for water usage. 2. RREBFREMKE

Shenzhen Office 2018
NP R E —E-N\F
(Electricity) (B An)

Electricity Consumed (kWh) REE(TRE) 900
Electricity Consumed per gross floor area (KWh/m?) FEEEREREE (TRE FHXK) 32.14
CO2 Emission from Electricity Consumed (kg) FREES 2 — 8 biEEm (F7) 488
(Paper) (#R)

Paper used (tonne) FA 4 (mg) 0.016
(Water) (%)

Water Consumption (m?) k& (LK) 150
Water Consumed per gross floor area (m3/m?) FEEEBERKE (AKX FHXK) 5.36

BEBERERERAA 45
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Yingkou Office 2018
EOMNE 3%
(Electricity) £h)

Electricity Consumed (kWh) HE= (FERE) 212,681
Electricity Consumed per gross floor area (KWh/m?) FEEEmEREE (TRE FHXK) 8.28
CO2 Emission from Electricity Consumed (kg) REEEZ S bR (T5) 153,045
(Paper) (4% R)

Paper used (tonne) P 4% (W) 0.036
(Water) (7)

Water Consumption (m3) RXE (Z7K) 2,844
Water Consumed per gross floor area (m3/m2) SEEEBAKE (ZHKFHXK) 0.11

The environment and natural resources

Due to the nature of the Group's existing businesses, the Group does
not engage in any operations that have a significant impact on the
environment. The Group made efforts to promote, and where possible,
integration of environmentally friendly business practices into daily
operations. Practical steps implemented by the management include
issuing notices that promote “green office management” concept
to employees, reminding staff the use of double-sided printing,
energy saving by switching off idle lighting and air conditioners and
using equipment carrying Energy Label issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department. Further, the Group also consider
this as one of the Group’s most important assessment criteria when
assessing and selecting suppliers and business partners. Environmental,
Social and Governance Report.
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Social
Employment and Labor Practices

A respectful and fair working environment for maintaining a sound
system of human resources management is considered to be vital
to the operation of the Group. The Group ensures strict compliance
with all relevant regulatory standards, particularly the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong in respect of recruitment, remuneration,
and separation. Employment process of the Group stresses the
consideration of experience, qualifications, and knowledge, with an
objective to ensure that there is no discrimination on the grounds of
age, gender, marital status, family status, gender orientation, disability,
race, nationality or religion. Upon satisfactory consideration, the Group
ensures that employment contract is fully understood by potential
employees before contracts are signed. Employment contract of the
Group includes employment terms such as job duties, working hours,
holidays, remuneration, termination process, and benefits.

The Group had adopted a five-day workweek arrangement to facilitate
work-life balance. In additional to all general holidays (including
Sundays) as specified in the General Holidays Ordinance, employees are
entitled to annual leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage
leaves and compassionate leaves with pay. Employees enjoy medical
benefits, provident fund scheme and other benefits subject to the
Group's policies.

The Group continuously evaluates the remuneration and promotion
mechanism so as to share the fruitful achievement with employees of
the Group. The Group motivates employees by promotion and salary
increment based on results of annual performance appraisal, and to
award double-pay payment and discretionary bonus in addition to
basic salary.

Dismissal is conducted with strict compliance with the Employment
Ordinance and the requirement as stipulated in the employment
contract.
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Health and safety

Operations of the Group do not involve heavy machinery or labor
intensive routines and are conducted in a safe office environment. The
Group does acknowledge the potential health issues that exist in office
settings, and therefore the Group promotes measures to talents of the
Group from exposure to occupational diseases or injuries, no matter
severe or minor.

The Group leverages on the promotional materials from Occupational
Safety and Health Council regarding information on providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards in an office working environment. Further, the Group ensures
full compliance towards Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and applicable regulations that protected employees from occupation
hazards. The Group did not experience any lost days due to injury or
work-related fatalities during the reporting period.

The Group encourages contractors and business partners in placing
great emphasis on health and safety issues, and the Group shares
views with them, in particular, business partners that operate in
factories.

Development and Training

The Group has a team of professionals to manage businesses of
the Group, and it is, therefore, vital for the Group to support their
continuous professional developments. For example, the Group
provides financial support to trainings relevant to their profession,
where necessary subsidies were given to employees for participation
in training sessions which aim at enhancing their job skills. These
trainings covered the areas such as management skill and leadership
improvement, company’s organization strategy and corporate culture,
and employee’s business knowledge. From time to time the Group
also provides updates of regulatory requirements and standards to
employees. In addition, the Group provides induction training materials
for Directors.

In the face of the ever-evolving business landscape, the Group also
places emphasis on the employees’ learning experience gained through
work assignments so as to build up their on-going job skills which
benefit their career development.
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Labour Standards

The businesses of the Group involve specialised skill and higher level
education standards and are not labour intensive in nature. As such,
the Group does not employ under-age employees, and the Group does
not engage in forced labour. The Group conveys its stance on child
labour and forced labour to key business partners and if there is any
confirmed report of such case in relation to business partners, the
Group will conduct an investigation in detail and critically reconsider
the relationships with such party. As part of the recruitment process,
the Group performs a background check and a reference check
where deemed necessary. Candidates who do not meet the legal
requirements would not be hired. The Group fully complies with
relevant regulations that prohibit child or forced labour.

Operating Practices
Supply chain management

The Group is in the trading business and the Group recognises the
role in promoting sustainability issues within the industry. The Group,
therefore, advocates the standards and expectations in respect of
environment issues and labour practices to suppliers and business
partners, with the expectation that they will uphold standards that
are similar to that of the Group. The Group relentlessly assesses and
monitors key business partners based on a wide range of aspects and
standards, including attitude towards environmental and social issues,
to evaluate the quality as well as their moral standards.

Product responsibility

Among all business lines, the Group does not have any packaged
products being sold to general public. In the trading business, products
are specialised industrial components with detailed specifications
stipulated in trade contracts. The Group specified the product
specifications in details and documented in sale and purchase contracts
for each trading project. The commodities shall meet the guaranteed
specifications for the completion of the trade. In the course of
conducting such business, the Group made efforts to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group had not received any litigation regarding the health
and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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Anti-corruption

The Group’s commitment to preventing bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering is one of the core values and the Group
is committed to preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in all businesses dealings or transactions of the Group.
The Group has made available a whistle-blowing reporting channel
to report any suspected fraud, malpractice, corruption, or any other
unethical actions. It is the policy of the Group to maintain high moral
standards in conducting businesses.

The Group has strictly adhered to relevant laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During the year ended
31 December 2018, there was no legal case or dispute in respect of
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering against employees of the
Group and the Group itself.

Community
Community investment

The Group is in the stage of expanding its business reach, and thus
by far the customer bases are mainly formed by commercial business
or strategic partners. The Group will continue to access which
particular community the Group can direct community investment
in. Nonetheless, the Group recognises the need to participate in the
community and therefore the Group both encourages and motivates
its employees to partake in communities. The Group from time to
time motivates employees to volunteer, contribute to support and
participate in community activities.
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ZHONGHUI

To the Members of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
REEBREZERAR LD E

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Enviro
Energy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
76 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Opening balances and corresponding figures

The audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, which forms the basis for the
corresponding figures presented in the current year's consolidated
financial statements, was qualified by another auditor in relation
to prepayments of HK$230,676,000 and other payables of
HK$7,990,000, details of which are set out in the auditor’'s report
dated 31 March 2018. In respect of these balances, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate these
balances and to satisfy ourselves whether the effects of these balances,
including the related cashflows, have been properly accounted for and
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
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Loan receivable, interest receivable, prepayments
and consideration receivables

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of loan receivable of
HK$170,764,000, interest receivable of HK$8,556,000, prepayments
for purchase of trading materials of HK$293,824,000 and
consideration receivables of HK$134,864,000 as at 31 December
2018. There are no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to determine whether any allowance for non-recovery of the
amounts should be made in the consolidated financial statements.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a
consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and the
financial positions of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017,
and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$14,531,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018. In addition, as at 31 December 2018 the Group’s bank balance
and cash of HK$2,123,000 is insufficient to cover the current liabilities
of HK$236,451,000. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Investment properties
Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value with the
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This
fair value measurement is significant to our audit because the balance
of investment properties of HK$177,936,000 as at 31 December 2018
and the fair value loss of HK$5,369,000 for the year then ended are
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group's fair value measurement involves application of judgement and
is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

- Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting with the
external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation
model to supporting evidence;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the
investment properties is supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 A% BN ¥R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 1% BLED R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

:%/T\I:l EV?:—":Z

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —Z— \F+_A=+—HILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\fF T —+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Likza FHERT FHT
Continuing operations: HEQEER
Revenue A 9 885,871 54,531
Cost of sales $HE R A (876,711) (46,994)
Gross profit ESpAl 9,160 7,537
Other income, net HAf % 10 18,261 8,046
Interest income FE WA 11 22,126 768
Fair value change on investment properties & &YW¥ AR BEES 19 (5,369) (20,866)
Administrative and operating expenses TEEEERSE (35,211) (24,420)
Operating profit/(loss) SRR (B518) 8,967 (28,935)
Finance cost A& B AR 12 (21,408) (21,521)
Loss before taxation % Tt Bl B 18 13 (12,441) (50,456)
Income tax expense FriSfif 14 (2,090) (399)
Loss from continuing operations SR oh ] (14,531) (50,855)
Discontinued operations: DRIEREEK .
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIEREXEBFEER
operations 27 - (43,045)
Loss for the year attributable to owners FEEE
of the Company (14,531) (93,900)
Loss per share from continuing AAREBEABRLGEKSE
operations attributable to owners XBERER
of the Company (LAFRBBWZ5))
(expressed in HK cent per share)
Basic and diluted EARREE 16 (0.16) (0.65)
Loss per share attributable to ADEEBE AEMN
owners of the Company BREE
(expressed in HK cent per share) (ABFRBILZES])
Basic and diluted HEA RS 16 (0.16) (1.21)
Dividend [ 3=% 15 - -

The notes on pages 83 to 167 are an

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

GeHMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
=f Y- —T— 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss for the year FEBBE (14,531) (93,900)
Other Comprehensive (loss)/income: Hih 2 (FE) W :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HA#AE B2 Em s BE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEBINEBEEZIERLEE
of foreign operation (9,465) 19,058
Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries S E A 7 & B 2 FH (3,121) 48,348
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FEHE M2 M (FHE) IWEHE (12,586) 67,406
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEX2HEBEHE
attributable to owners of the Company (27,117) (26,494)

The notes on pages 83 to 167 are an integral part of these FBIEIC7TEMHE M AZFHREMBHRE &

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR &R

As at 31 December 2018 R =2 —N\E+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaF FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEMEE 17 750 764
Loan receivable FEWE R 18 170,764 180,000
Investment properties HEYE 19 177,936 383,173
Intangible assets mVEE 780 330
Rental deposits Heke 1,387 1,387
351,617 565,654
Current assets REBEE
Inventories PENCY - 129
Trade receivables U E SRR 22 18,211 60,463
Deposit, prepayment and other receivables %% - A58 [ B4t UL
IR 23 441,949 363,709
Bank balance and cash RITEBRERS 2,123 154,140
462,283 578,441
Assets classified as held for sale DIEARELHECEE 21 - 41,207
462,283 619,648
Total assets EEHEE 813,900 1,185,302
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital fi% < 26 22,620 22,620
Reserves & &5 553,171 580,618
575,791 603,238

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A AR R

As at 31 December 2018 R —Z—N\E+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FERT FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Shareholder’s loan Hx%fﬁm 33(b) = 2,000
Deferred loan interest B B ROR B A
income — non-current portion — FEBNEREf > 1,163 2,400
Asset retirement obligation EEREBER 495 495
1,658 4,895
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JEHT%EE K HAth
F’Eﬁ* 24 44,304 83,623
Deferred loan interest REEE ﬂ A
income — current portion — BIERER &> 1,138 1,200
Loan from a related company KE—RBEERAIZER - 62,331
Shareholder’s loan H&%%% 33(b) 4,200 -
Bank borrowings IRITER 25 184,425 429,600
Income tax payable F’Eﬁﬁﬁ i 2,384 415
236,451 577,169
Total liabilities EEHAE 238,109 582,064
Total equity and liabilities ERREERAE 813,900 1,185,302

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 167 have been
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Li Sen
=3

Director

EF

The notes on pages 83 to 167 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FICRI6TE IR A B HREKLETEN _Z
—NWF=ZA=Z+ThBAERATIHEERKES
EED§

Zhou Xuesheng
BAEE
Director
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Consolidoted Statement of Changes in Equity

nVT\ *-.

“)i%:%@%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HiEZ =%

—NF+ZR=+—RLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

9N
Share Non-
Share Share Capital options  Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
Gapital  premium  reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
i REEE : BRERE  ENRE ZitER Mt FERER @t
MO HKSOO0 RSO0 KGO0 HKSOOD  HKSOOD  RKSOOD WSO HKSOD  HKSOOD
Thn Thn TEn Thn Thn Thn ?%TL Fhn Thn TR
At 1 January 2017 RZE-tE-A-A 18,850 900,455 19,980 68,924 (26277) (47782) (500,008) 434142 (2.789) 431,353
ComFrehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (939000  (93,900) - (93,900)
Other comprehensive Hb2ERE

income
Fichange differences arising 22BN £BELZ

from trandlation of foreign R EE

operations - - - - 19,058 - - 19,058 - 19,058
Release of reserves upon MHERBA AR

disposal of subsidiaries LEE ()

(note 27) - - - - 566 47782 - 48348 - 48348
Total comprehensive loss ~ £E 2 AERLE - - - S9E a8 B30 (6494 S A
Transactions with owners ~ EEAANEHAZ

in their capacity as SRET2RA

owners .

Lapse of options (note 31(b)) ~ BREX M (H331(0) - - - (#37) - - - #37) - #37)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBRF (Hi2)

(note 27) - - - - - - - - 2,189 2,789
lssuance of shares B7id (Mi2e)

(note 26) 3,710 192,257 - - - - - 196,027 - 196,027
At 31 December 2017 BoB-tE

T-A=1-H 22,620 1,092,712 19,980 68,487 (6,653) - (593,908) 603,238 - 603,238
Adjustment on initial ERERERNBAS

application of HKFRS 9 BRI 205 2 H%

(note 3) (h3) - - - - - - (330) (330) - (330
Restated balance at 1 January % -5—/\¥—-F—H

2018 BTG 22,600 1,092,712 19,980 68,487 (6,653) - (594,238) 602,908 - 602,908
ComFrehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - (14331 (14531) - (14531)
Other comprehensive loss ~ E 128
Bichange differences arising }ﬁ;'li \\%f%éiz

from trandlation of foreign ~~ ERZ

operations - - - - (9,465) - - (9,465) - (9,465)
Release of reserves upon ~~~ REENE ’Rﬂﬁﬂw

disposal of subsidiaries LG (3E29)

(note 29) - - - - (3,121) - - (3121) - (3121)
Total comprehensive loss ~ EE2HEBLE - - - - (12,586) - (14531 Q111) - @7.17)
Transactions with owners ~ EEAANERAZ

in their capacity as SfETIRS

owners o
Lapse of options (note 31(b)) ~ BERREX T (F1£31(b)) - - - 2499) - - 2499 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\F

T-A=1-1 22,620 1,092,712 19,980 65,988 (19,239) - (606,270) 575,791 - 575,791
The notes on pages 83 to 167 are an integral part of these F3ERITEFEMEAZEREM BRI —

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-_]_\/\‘ILE Y 2 /}ll.r %

As at 31 December 2018 R —Z—N\E+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i iF FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Loss before taxation B AR B 1R (12,441) (93,501)
Adjustments for: FTINEB L AE
Interest income BE WA (22,126) 4)
Finance cost A& B AN 21,408 21,521
Depreciation of property, plant and WME BERREBITE
equipment 118 12
Provision for expected credit loss TEHE BB RE 2,768 -
Fair value change on investment BREWMEARBEFE
properties 5,369 20,866
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AIHEERE ZREEE
investment - 200
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (M)
&8 (9,203) 43,182
Gain on disposal of asset held for sales HESELEEE 2 W (7,137) -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2R (2,129) -
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HEAHEERE 2 s
investment - (8,000)
Operating cash flows before movements in & & & & &A1~
working capital KEHRERE (23,373) (15,724)
Change in inventories FE® 129 (129)
Change in trade receivables JEWE 5 R EE 41,442 (22,319)
Change in deposit, prepayment and other &% ~ JERTRIE M E Aty
receivables FE W R IB & &) 54,539 (134,821)
Change in trade and other payables ERESERANEM
JEN IR E B 4,237 64,755
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEHEY,/(FTA)ES 76,974 (108,238)
Income tax paid [RENPEEEY! (121) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) REEKRFE(FTA) 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEH 76,853 (108,238)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Interest received B UH B 12,271 4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEA M « BE LR #E (105) (259)
Purchase of intangible asset BAREEE (450) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash HEWEBE AR (FB%RFTHE
equivalents disposed of) ZHEeRRESEEY) 29 27,321 (36)
Additions of investment properties NEREWE - (3,210)
Consideration paid for acquisitions of WEEH B AE 2 ENRIE
subsidiaries (net of cash and cash (fBRPTU IS 2 IR & &
equivalents acquired) ReEEEY) - (27,063)
Loan to third parties MEZARLER - (180,000)
Entrusted loan to third parties MEZFREETER - (28,546)
Proceeds from repayment of entrusted loan FE=FEEZTER
from a third party F 5 5/ 18 = 14,249
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/USED IN)  REEBI 18/ (i B) Fi 8
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFH 39,037 (224,861)
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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Consolidoted Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/__r\/\IEr M7 /)IL, %

As at 31 December 2018 R =2 —N\E+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M at FET AT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
Proceeds from placing of shares fid & A% 15 BT 15 RUA - 196,027
Interest paid 2158 (21,408) (21,521)
Proceeds from bank borrowings iﬁﬁ%%’}(ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ — 410,863
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRITER (185,977) (183,382)
Proceeds from loan from a related company R BEBERA T2 ERASHIE — 240,000
Repayment of loan from a related company EEREBEEQARZER (62,331) (177,669)
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan R EFRETERIA 2,200 2,000
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM BEEE (A FERS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES peeg:c) (267,516) 466,318
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND & RIS EEY O L) 1E
CASH EQUIVALENTS miEEE (151,626) 133,219
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHZ7HESRRSZEBY -
BEGINNING OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BAIRITEHR LIRS
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 154,140 20,609
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE ON CASH AND BeRREBYIEHR 5
CASH EQUIVALENTS (391) 312
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF X ZHERBEZEY -
YEAR, REPRESENTED BY MABITHBRASE
BANK BALANCES AND CASH, representing
Bank balances and cash 2,123 154,140

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 3 July 2002. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is Room 1603-
5, 16th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Group is principally engaged in trading business,
investment holding and properties investment via its subsidiary
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the
Company and its subsidiaries are thereafter referred as the
“Group”). Details of its subsidiary company are set out in Note
20 to these consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2018, Able Victory Enterprises Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company, and
Mr. Li Sen (“Mr. Li”), an Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board, is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$14,531,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018. In addition, as at 31 December 2018 the Group's bank
balance and cash of HK$2,123,000 is insufficient to cover the
current liabilities of HK$236,451,000. These conditions indicate
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financial support of the controlling shareholder, at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the
Group. The controlling shareholder has agreed to provide
adequate funds for the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall
due. The directors of the Company are therefore of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to the consolidated financial statements to adjust
the value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities, respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years except as stated below.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, Amendments to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirement for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
("ECL") for financial assets, finance lease receivables and
financial guarantee contracts and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied to the requirement
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amount as at
31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The table below illustrates the effect of ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

TRIPR-Z-NF-—HA—HE
EREREMBREER LI M

RFER

%;/E =

FHERIEIE TEMEEERNTE -

Trade Accumulated
receivables losses
EWE S ER ZitER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H
— HKAS 39 Z AR - BB R
F395% 60,463 (593,908)
Remeasurement impairment FEHEEEBEBRERT
under ECL model EFFTERE (330) (330)
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—-H—-RBZ
— HKFRS 9 s — BT BmE
HE B E95% 60,133 (594,238)
The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been KREBVAEACEBEERERZHE]
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already EAMIGEHELED - REB D L E#HE]
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs EEVHREENNTZERMATGE  BX

but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
PN

R B RS AR MY A

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, which are carried at their
fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial performance and positions and/or on the disclosure to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e B R AR M AL

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Group's share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PN
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The functional currency of the Group is
Renminbi. The directors consider that choosing
Hong Kong dollars as the presentation currency
best suits the needs of the shareholders and
investors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

4.

BEASEE @

(b)

HINEBRE (&)

(iii)

HEREBRE

NEEETHBEEE R
FRARBRIEHENE
B HEERVBARRIEN
THRBREARQBNZT
B

SHBERNE L2
CEERAMEK
RN EA SN
W R

- W32 Ty 4% 15 T &
B8 (RRIE FIE
RWFBHERHA
HIRITE X REt &
22 8EMNE"
EZBRAT  BX
REBXHERZ
[EXBE) &

- Fr B B e 2 A
PE 3 ZE BRI RN
BERETER -

KRB R - RBRERNE
SNERREFREREEME
EHE S ZREEIRINERE
FEETHER - BHEEINE
B - ARELZENES
BRAERSLERELN

BB -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R M

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EBERETTHER@

(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment () ME- -BERXE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical Y -~ BUE B R AR IR E 2 AR AT
cost less depreciation. EAK-
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method MENERESZE  UREEZM
to allocate the cost of the assets to their residual values AR TFHEEEZR AR
over their estimated useful lives, as follows: HFlerEME
Leasehold 3 years or over the lease term, MERE IS FH (AR

improvements whichever is shorter RER%E)
Computer equipment 2 — 3 years BIEZER 2E3F
and software B

Office equipment 5 years MNEHRE 5F
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation FIREE  AIFERAFHERITE A
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at REREHARBRT RELAE (W0
the end of each reporting period. @A) e
The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BMENLKREBEIELEHW
equipment is the difference between the net sales wm BB REEEENHEMENR
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, BFEMEEmEMANERE TR
and is recognised in profit or loss. B P ER -

(d) Investment properties (d BREWEHE

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B EmRMEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Leases
The Group as leasee
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

()

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(V)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

- Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if
they satisfy both of the following conditions:

the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses

Loss allowances for expected credit
losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of
credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables and
lease receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()]

(k)

0

Loss allowances for expected credit
losses (Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than trade receivables
and lease receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Borrowings

(n)

(o)

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(p)(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of
a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

- the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

(p)(ii) Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B EmRMEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties
are measured based on the expected manner as to how
the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)
(B) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

(v) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or not yet available for use are reviewed annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets except investment properties, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financial support of the controlling shareholder
at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group. Details are explained in note
2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have rebutted the
presumption that investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

(b) Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the valuer has
utilised a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions.

(c) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities, Renminbi. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the foreign exchange
exposure between HK$ and RMB was insignificant to
profit or loss.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade receivables and other receivables and loan
receivable included in the statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, in respect of trade
receivables, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk to the extent that HK$7,923,000 (2017:
HK$27,314,000) of trade receivables is attributable by a
customer. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The non-current loan receivable was secured by the
properties from the counterparty. Management has
estimated the market value for the properties and
obtained a supplementary agreement to postpone
the transfer of the properties given the legal title of
the properties is yet to be transferred to the Group.
No provisions were made based on the results of the
assessments performed by management.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (if available);
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral
or in the quality of guarantees or credit
enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable
for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group,
if practicable and economical, continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BHXEERERER @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERB#)

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for each

AEEBEZZREERD B
BAEIBERREENEER
% URBEBRRETEEREEN
% - NETERBEEBEER
AEEEEEZRMNELER

category and adjusts for forward looking data. & WE AT BURIEL A% -

Category Definition Loss provision

=hl E & BREE

Performing Low risk of default and strong 12 month expected losses
capacity to pay

B %) KRB AR R R EE 5R 1218 BFE & B

Non-Performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses

TR EERR AR - FaAETEH &R
Consideration
Consideration receivable
receivable from disposal
from disposal of assets
investment  classified as Interest
properties held for sale receivable Total
HE HESER
REVE BFLHEEE
EWRE ERAE RS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THET THET
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=ZBA=+—-H 87,329 49,034 9,762 146,125
Provision for loss allowance 518 # & (809) (690) (1,206) (2,705)
Carrying amounts SREE 86,520 48,344 8,556 143,420
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZA=+—8 - - - -

Provision for loss allowance 518 & - - - -

FmEE - - - -

Carrying amounts
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

All of these loans are considered to have low risk and
under the ‘Performing’ category because they have a
low risk of default and have strong ability to meet their

obligations.

KRR ER #@)

(b) EEREE @)

g

ZEEFBRREAERR -

HRERZORRERERAENE
MEENEE WESRE[EL]

BRI -

Consideration

Consideration receivable
receivable from disposal
from disposal of assets
of investment  classified as Interest
properties held for sale receivable Total
HESER
HEREME REHEERE
A ERRE EWRE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THER THER THER TER
Expected credit loss rate  FEER{z EEIE X
2018 —F—-NF 1% 1% 12%
2017 —Z—tF - - -
Loss allowance at —E—+F
1 January 2017 —A—H®
BiRAE - - - -
Increase in provision REE-_ZT—+F
during year ended +=—A=+—81
31 December 2017 FE RN - - - -
Loss allowance at RZE—+tF
31 December 2017 +—-—A=+—H
B BB - - - -
Increase in provision REBE-—ZE—NE
during year ended +=-A=+—H1t
31 December 2018 FEREIE N 809 690 1,206 2,705
Loss allowance at RZZE—N\F
31 December 2018 +=-—A=+—H
B S BE A 809 690 1,206 2,705
The increase in loss allowance is due to increase in BREEEE NI AR ZEERS R
expected credit loss rates of these loan amounts. ZTEHEEEBELA -
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BBEBREIE &)
(c) Liquidity risk (0 RBELRAMR
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current AEEBRNRRATHEIEE /I MTE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it HRBESLHFE  URREERFT
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity MR cRHEENECSHEREHNR
requirements in the short and long term. HESFE -
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is AEBEEREENDEH A
as follows: N
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
—FLUTF —EmMF —EAHF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER THER
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZ2-N\%F
+=A=+-RH
Trade and other payables BREZERKX
H o fE S 0IR 39,694 - - 39,694
Bank borrowings and RITER R
interest payable JE - FILE, 186,699 - - 186,699
Shareholder’s loan BREER 4,200 - - 4,200
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
+-A=+—H
Trade and other payables ENEZERL
HoAth 5 R 78,921 - - 78,921
Loan from a related company RKE@EQFZ
X 62,331 - - 62,331
Bank borrowings and RITER K
interest payable FE SR B, 442,262 - - 442,262
Shareholder’s loan BEREZ - 2,000 - 2,000
(d) Interest rate risk (d) F==F B

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s bank deposits and bank borrowings bear
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject
to fair value interest rate risks.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

6.

KRR ER #@)

(e) TMIEADE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets: SREE .
Financial assets at amortised cost TR AT BRA S R E =
(including cash and cash equivalents) (B#FREFREEEY) 335,938 519,633
Financial liabilities: ==
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKAI RN B E 228,319 577,554

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

() 2nEE

A MR R AT R A EE
EREENERABRAERELS
BOAREEES -

AREEH R

AR BE/KEMS2EBERTE B HET
ZHBFR ST EEEMEI SR
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREEFE@
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (a) AAREBEERESE .
hierarchy
Fair value measurements using: Total
FERAUTERAENAAEE: st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
Description iz B EZR E=HK —EB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET THET TET
Recurring fair value REMDNABETSE
measurements:
Investment properties REYE
Commercial - Hong Kong BA-B% - - - -
Commercial - PRC [z R - 177,936 - 177,936
Total recurring fair value REMEAAREETE
measurements #st - 177,936 - 177,936
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERUATERFENRAEE et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
Description s F—R F_R® F=H —T—+tF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Recurring fair value REMDAEEE:
measurements:
Investment properties BEME
Commercial - Hong Kong HR-&8 - - - -
Commercial —= PRC il R - 214,393 168,780 383,173
Total recurring fair value FEEMAARBETE
measurements wet - 214,393 168,780 383,173
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREEFE@®
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at (b) BBEF=RERAALEES
fair value based on level 3 ENEENYER:
2018
—E-N\F
Total
et
HK$'000
TR
Investment properties REWME
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF 168,780
Disposal through a subsidiary EBEMBEARHE (29,580)
Transfers to Level 2 EEFE N (139,200)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-A=+—H =
During the year, investment properties amounting to FRA BREVERBARE
RMB 116,000,000 (equivalent to HK$139,200,000) were 116,000,000 (48 & 139,200,000
transferred from measurement based on level 3 to level B BEER EZEEHMARES
2 as a result of change of valuation method. —RFEEREREE R E -
2017
—t4F
Total
#Et
HK$'000
FHT
Investment properties REME
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+tF 125,726
Purchases BE 2,139
Currency translation differences EEHhE =5 11,648
Change in fair value(#) NREEFEHR 595
Acquired through a subsidiary P NG G 28,672
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H 168,780
# Include gains or losses for asset held at end # EIERMEHKRFIFEEN
of reporting period Wz B 5 18 595
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ”ﬂlﬁnﬁﬁu RIS SRS 1B
including those for assets held at end of reporting % AERRANEEY
period are presented in fair value change on investment AT FTEEF':E@J
properties in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
REBEBRZRERDR

—E-N\EFFER
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process
used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2018:

The Board is responsible for the fair value measurements
of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- Reversionary yield
- Adopted site unit rate

- Adopted unit cost
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AREBETTE@#

(c) Disclosure of valuation process o) XEEMERAGFERF
used by the Group and valuation ER=-_ZFE—-NFE+=A
techniques and inputs used in fair value =t+—HHQAAEBEFE
measurements at 31 December 2018: Fi {5 FA B9 1 {8 5 9l 2 B0 A
(Continued) BEWRE (&)

Level 2 fair value measurements
FE-RDPABETE
Fair value
AREE
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2018
Bt fhER WABE —EB-N\fF
HK$°000
FHET
Investment properties — PRC Market comparable Price per square metre 177,936
REYE—PE approach BFHKRER
Ti5 L BUA
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2017
s (CREES 0] A BUE —T—+F
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties — PRC Market comparable Price per square metre 214,393
REME-—PE approach FF T RER
iSO
Level 3 fair value measurements
FZRAABETE
Effect on
fair value
Valuation forincrease  Fair value
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs 2017
WAHE
LHEZR MREE
Bk HER M TABRBAYE 6B EENYE —2-t#%
HK$'000
TR
Investment properties - PRC Capitalisation of income Reversionary yield 5.5%  Decrease 139,200
RENF-TE WRERIE B8 W e K b
Investment properties - PRC Deprecation replacement cost ~ Adopted site unit rate yield RMB397  Increase 29,580
RENF-TE FEREERNE FIRAESEMLE  AR®397T  E
Adopted unit cost RMB4,509  Increase
FIRAE B KA AR#A4,5097T
ReEEBRERERAT

—E-\FER
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

In order to broaden the sources of income and improve
operating profits, the Group commenced the trading business
as one of the principal business activities of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and carries on into the
year ended 31 December 2018. The Board considered that
the business can broaden the revenue base and improve the
financial position of the Group and that will be in the interest
of the Group.

Furthermore, following the disposal of Aces Diamond Holding
Limited (“Aces Diamond”), the holding company of PT. Bara
Hugo Energy (“BHE”) and PT. Grasada Multinational ("GM"),
the Board decided to discontinue the operation of natural
resources and energy related business and information
technology and related business in December 2017. Hence,
the results of these segments were presented as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 9 November 2018, Mr. Li, an Executive Director and the
Chairman, has been re-designated from Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") to the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng, an Executive Director, has been appointed
as the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

On 27 November 2018, Mr. Li resigned as Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and Mr. Zhou Xuesheng has been re-
designated from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the CEO, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Properties investment

Investment holding

Trading business

Natural resources and energy related business
(discontinued operation) (note 27)

Information technology and related business
(discontinued operation) (note 27)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and

allocating resources between segments, the CEO monitors the

results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following basis:

(a)

(@]

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of asset classified
as held for sale, rental deposit, intangible assets and
other unallocated head office corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of shareholder’s loan, asset retirement
obligation and other unallocated head office corporate
liabilities.

Segment results are allocated to reportable segments
with reference to sales generated and expenses incurred
by those segments, together with other income, net,
fair value change of investment properties, selling and
distribution expenses and administrative and operating
expenses.

The amounts provided to the CEO with respect to the
information mentioned above are measured in a manner

consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, certain assets,
liabilities and capital expenditures for the Group’s reportable
segments is as follows:

8.

TEER (#)

AEBA2HRO MBI AEEWA ~ %46 -
ETEE BEREARIZOMWMT :

Continuing operations

i B LS

Property  Investment Trading
investment holding  business

NERE  REER  ESER
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TERL Thn

Discontinued operations
BRILBEER
Natural
resources  Information
and energy  technology
related and related
Subtotal ~ business  business  Subtotal Consolidated
XRER
REER  EAMK
Nt RBEE  REBER it &a
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
TEr TR TR AR TEr

For the year ended BEZER-)\%

31 December 2018 TZRZ+-HLEE
Segment revenue FHRA 4210 - 881601 88587 - - - 885,871
Gross profit Z 4,210 - 4,890 9,160 - - - 9,160
Other gains, net EthFka 11,688 - (2,654) 9,034 - = = 9,034
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries NENBARNE 9,203 - - 9,203 - - - 9,203
Fair value change on investment RENELLEERS

properties (5,369) - - (5,369) - - - (5.369)
Administrative and operating expenses T RIEEH S (2,570) - (11,973) (14,543) - - - (14,543)
Segment result b 17,2 - (9737) 7,485 - - - 7,485
Unallocated: AAR:
Other income, net ke 2,150
Administrative and operating expenses  #TH R £ R % (20,668)
Operating loss mepE 8,967
Finance cost REKK (21,408)
Loss before taxation RHAEE (12,441)
Income tax iR (2,090)
Loss for the year EEER (14,531)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. HEX @
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
FELERH BRLEEER
Natural

resources  Information
and energy  technology

Property  Investment Trading related and related
investment holding ~ business  Subtotal  business  business  Subtotal Consolidated
RAER

RER  EAMR
NERE  REER  HARE M OHBRE  REERE i Ra
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TErn TRz TEx  TBz  TEr  TEr  TER T#n

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
tZA=1-A
Seqment assets PHEE 319,27 85 314,683 634,055 - - - 634,055
Unallocated assets AANEE 179,845
Total assets BELE 813,900
Seqment liabilities HHER (202,122) (4,610) (47700 (211,502) - - - (211502
Unallocated liabilities AARER (26,607)
Total liabilities BRELE (238,109)
For the year ended HE-E-NE
31 December 2018 TZA=t-ALEE
Capital expenditures BRHx - 105 - 105 - - - 105
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZEEFR
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REMEER BAILEEER
Natural

resources  Information
and energy  technology

Property  Investment Trading related  and related
investment holding business Subtotal business business Subtotal ~ Consolidated
ARER

RgR  EABR
hERE  RERR  BAXE Nt OBBRE  REERR et ka
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TErL  TEr TR TET  TET  TEn  TEn  TER

For the year ended HE-Z-t%

31 December 2017 TZBR=1-BLEE
Segment revenue 2HHA 3,967 977 49,587 54,531 4,697 - 4,697 59,228
Gross profit el 3,666 977 2,89 71537 137 - 137 1,674
Other gains, net EEhs - 8,652 - 8,652 - - - 8,652
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBATER - - - - (43,182) - (43,182) (43,182)
Fair value change on investment REMENABESY

properties (20,866) - - (20,866) - - - (20,866)
Administrative and operating expenses 175 R 4R % (4.732) - (925) (5,657) - - - (5,657)
Segment result PBEE (21932) 9,629 1969 (10334 (43,045) - (43,045 (53379)
Unallocated: AAE:
Other gains, net AhEha 162
Administrative and operating expenses /75 R 4R % (18,763)
Operating loss meEs (71,980)
Finance cost RERK (21,521)
Loss before taxation BHEER (93,501)
Income taxation ifh (399)
Loss for the year FEER (93,900)
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. EEHR #)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REEELE BRIBEEH
Natural
resources  Information
and energy  technology
Property  Investment Trading related  and related
investment holding business Subtotal business business Subtotal  Consolidated
RAER
RetE  EARE
nERE  REBR  B5%E Nt REER RAEER gt &a
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn TiEn TR TiEn T TiEn TEL Thn
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+-A=1-H
Segment assets PHEE 474,530 336,002 214,788 1,025,320 852 - 852 1,026,172
Unallocated assets PREE 117,923
Assets classified as held for sale NEERIFLEZEE 41,207
Total assets BERE 1,185,302
Segment liabilities AHER (18,981) (3,600) (57,714) (80,295) (4,702) - (4,702) (84,997)
Unallocated liabilities FPEERE (497,067)
Total liabilities BEEE (582,064)
For the year ended HE-F-t%
31 December 2017 TZRZt-BLEE
Capital expenditures EERY 31,882 - - 31,882 - - - 31,882
Unallocated capital expenditures APRELRER 754
32,636
REEBRERERAT

—E-N\EFFER
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. SHER
The Group’s non-current assets other than loan receivable as at AEBR - Z—N\EFER-_ZT—+F+_-A8
31 December 2018 and 2017 are further analysed as follows: Tt —HZERDEE (BREWER) &

— W

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FTicth2h) 2,901 2,439
The PRC s 177,952 383,215
180,853 385,654

AT AR R P 8IS IR A S N E BB

Revenue individually generated from the following customers

contributed more than 10% of the total revenue of the Group: A10% A £ -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Customer A EPA 261,485 -
Customer B =B 145,646 -
Customer C ®FEC 135,263 -
Customer D ZFED 102,541 -
Customer E BFE 101,741 -
Customer F Z5F = 22,634
Customer G =FG = 13,580
Customer H ZFEH = 10,612

RBINEDE P/ IR 2 PR3 R 30 (2 8] 5
REMBEE TR ZLA -

Revenue from external customers/sources by geographical
locations, based on the location of the external customers/

sources:
2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fox FH&IT

Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (PTictb2h) = 977
The PRC i 885,871 53,554
885,871 54,531
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9.

REVENUE PN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Continuing operations: HEKEER
Trade of materials MRE S 881,601 49,587
Revenue from contracts with customers BEAHIEA 881,601 49,587
Investment income BEIWA = 977
Rental income WA 4,270 3,967
Total revenue FERL N 885,871 54,531
2018 —E-N\F
Trade of
building
material
Segments ol BEMBES
HK$'000
FHET
Geographical markets &%
The PRC 2] 881,601
Timing of revenue recognition Iy 25 7 5 I S
At a point in time R — BB 881,601
BHuEBERERALA

T \FFR
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9. REVENUE (continued)

9. WA @

2017 —E—LtF
Trade of
building
material
Segments ol EEMNBES
HK$'000
FHET
Geographical markets ih BT
The PRC F 49,587
Timing of revenue recognition U #5 78 2 I P
At a point in time EXE R 49,587
Sales of materials MEE S

The Group sells materials to the customers. Sales are recognised

AEEREPHEME - FEEMIOZEHIE

when control of the products has transferred, being when the PEE(MERRNTE,2F) - AfE

products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

ARFETPEXEMNABETEERE
FEERERNSEMBREE - BRHE -

products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the

products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30
to 180 days. For new customers, deposits or cash on delivery

may be required.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to
the customers as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is required

before the payment is due.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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10.

11.

12.

OTHER GAINS, NET 10. HfbF W=
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEIT
Continuing operations: BREKSEEL
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale HEATHEERE 2 W
investment — 8,000
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale A ERE ZREEBE
investment = (200)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 29) 6 B B A B M AR (B EE29) 9,203 -
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale S REHE & E W 7,137 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HERE WS 2,129 -
Expected credit loss TEH{E EE1E (2,768) -
Others, net Hih - ¥ 2,560 246
18,261 8,046
INTEREST INCOME 1. FMEHEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Continuing operations: HEREEK:
Bank interest income RITHR B WA 89 4
Interest income from entrusted loan KEZTXEZRZFEUWA 282 764
Interest income from loan receivables e REREZZFEUA 21,755 -
22,126 768
FINANCE COST 12. BERK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Continuing operations: BEKSEEK
Interest on bank borrowings wholly HAR—FRNEHEEL
repayable within one year RITERONFE 21,408 21,521
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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13.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

13.

The Group's loss before taxation is arrived at after charging the

following:

BRE AT &S 1]

AEBZGRBABRCHE TSR

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BREEER BRERERE @5t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F | ZE+F | ZB-N\E | ZT—tF | ZB-N\F | ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THL THEx THAT THEx THT
Cost of inventories sold EHFERR 876,711 46,693 = 4,560 876,711 51,253
Depreciation of property, nE BERRENE
plant and equipment 118 12 - - 118 12
Auditor's remuneration HEAH S
- Audit services ~ZERE 1,050 2,400 = - 1,050 2,400
- Non-audit services —ERERK - 195 - _ _ 195
Operating lease payments MERENA 3,636 1,474 = - 3,636 1,474
Staff costs, including directors' EERT (BEESEMHE)
emoluments
- Salaries, allowances and - 2R REMEF
other benefits 6,276 9,852 - - 6,276 9,852
— Retirement benefit scheme —RINE R B R
contributions 151 259 - - 151 259
- Social insurance -HERKB 132 150 = - 132 150
Exchange loss, net EABRTE 39 1,223 = - 39 1,223

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B EmRMEE

14.

INCOME TAX

14.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Group
did not have any assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

Enterprise Income Tax of HK$2,090,000 has been provided for
a subsidiary in the PRC for its assessable profits during the year

ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$399,000).

The tax on the Group's loss before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using domestic income tax
rate applicable to losses/profits of the consolidated entities as

follows:

P ®

BRAREBRE—_T - \F+_A=1—
BIEFELERBBELRRTGHN - &
WEABFEMNSRIELBE (T —1F:
&) -

ARABERPE-—BHBEQRAEE-Z
—N\E+-A=t+—BILFEZERRE
FETIR D EATS T A 52,090,000/ 7T (=
T —+4F 399,000/ 7T) °

AEEBRHABREZHE  BHRRES
HERBERANBEARMEHK R EAEH
B SN2 REE  JEAT

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
REREER BRIEREEE b
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f | ZT—tF | ZB-N\F | ZE—+tF | ZB-N\F | ZT—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TR TR TR
Loss before taxation BRitaEE (12,441) (50,456) = (43,045) (12,441) (93,501)
Tax calculated at the domestic REEENFREH
income tax rate in the BERHE 7B
respective countries (3,110) (11,868) - (7,102) (3,110) (18,970)
Tax effect of: WTBEZRBEEE
- income not subject to tax —BAZHIMA = (1,320) = - = (1,320)
~ expenses not deductible — AN EX 2,420 5,251 = 7,125 2,420 12,376
~ tax losses not recognised - KEAHEEE 2,780 8,336 = (23) 2,780 8,313
Income tax FEH 2,090 399 = - 2,090 399
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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14.

15.

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets from
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$41,877,000 (2017:
HK$39,097,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time. As at 31 December 2018, the
unrecognised deferred tax assets from estimated tax losses
arising from the subsidiaries in the PRC are approximately
HK$28,054,000 (2017: HK$25,274,000), which would
expire in five years from the respective year of loss. Also the
unrecognised deferred tax assets from estimated tax losses
relating to subsidiaries in Hong Kong are approximately
HK$13,823,000 (2017: HK$13,823,000) that have no expiry
date.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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14.

15.

IR AE )

REBFREARBEEIBERERELTH
18 & FE4941,877,0008 7T (Z 8 —+ 4 ¢
39,097,000/ 7T) - AT AUAEKIEELES
BARMBBRERFES - EEEAJ%TEﬁ
BEA —BRERSESEBEONNREB R
E&ﬂﬁﬁ%%%}éﬂaﬁéﬁmk%ﬁlﬁé? o
R_ZE—NF+_A=1+—8 s+ H
MEBAREEZMEAHEBEZ RER
IE 3B TH B B 4 528,054,000 T (=&
—- 4 25,274,000/ 70) 15 5 HE B &S
BEERFGAFERER - HRBHAEENWE
NAZ T RMIBBE 2 RERELET E
& E#)513,823,00008 70 (T —+4F
13,823,000/ 7T) « WAE R B A -

Hﬁ z%x

VEABE_T-N\F+_A=+—HL
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16. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

(a)

16. SRE#E

EREARBEDERBEE-ZE—)\F
F_E—+tF+_A=+—HBLF
E2ANBHE AEEEBERIUAE
BT RRIMNETFEHEH

ARRHEENEESRERERTY
BATBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\% —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loss attributable to owners of the A ETRELEERZ
Company for the purpose of calculating RABHEE ARIEEE
basic loss per share
Continuing operations SE A (14,531) (50,855)
Discontinued operations SRS - (43,045)
(14,531) (93,900)
‘000 ‘000
Weighted average number of ordinary MTEBREREIE Y
shares for the purpose of calculating LB NE T
basic loss per share 9,047,844 7,767,162
The Group had share options outstanding as at 31 (b) AEBR -_ZT—N\ER-_T—+4F

December 2018 and 2017. The share options did not
have a dilutive effect on loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

TZA=t - HARKRTEEBK
e ZEERESBEE_T-N\F
R—ZF—+tHF+-A=+—HBLF
BzeREELTEHIZE -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. V¥ -BERRXE

Computer
equipment
Leasehold and Office
improvements software equipment Total
HENE EHRER
®E B BAERME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET FEL
At 1 January 2017 R-Z-t&-A-AH
Cost XK 1,107 7 95 1,273
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (1,107) (42) (79) (1,228)
Net book amount REFE - 29 16 45
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-t¥+-A=+-HLFE
Opening net book amount FMREFE - 29 16 45
Exchange differences ERZEE - (1) - (1)
Additions RE 495 19 240 754
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBRE - (5) (17) (22)
Depreciation charge (note) WE(Wi#) - - (12) (12)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 495 42 227 764
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t&+=-A=1-8
Cost KA 495 84 239 818
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (42) (12) (54)
Net book amount REFE 495 42 227 764
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\F+-A=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 495 42 227 764
Exchange differences EXESR - (1) - (1)
Additions NE - - 105 105
Depreciation charge (note) WE(Hit) - (25) (93) (118)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 495 16 239 750
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=1-H
Cost A 495 83 344 922
Accumulated depreciation EESik - (67) (105) (172)
Net book amount REFE 495 16 239 750

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the depreciation charge for
continuing operations amounted to HK$118,000 (2017: HK$12,000)
was charged to the administrative and operating expenses in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

On 29 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing Finance Lease
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (literal translation of the
Chinese name) (“Qianhai Guoxing”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party (“Vendor”), pursuant
to which Qianhai Guoxing has agreed to acquire certain
commercial properties from the Vendor for a consideration of
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$180, 000,
000) and Qianhai Guoxing paid the full consideration to the
Vendor on the same date. Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor is required to
complete all the procedures necessary to transfer the title of
these properties to Qianhai Guoxing on or before 30 December
2018. On 1 August 2018, a supplementary agreement was
signed in which both parties agreed to postpone the transfer
the title of these properties on or before 27 December 2020.

17.

18.

¥ BERSE @

Bat

BE_Z-\F+_A=+—HILFE ##
REEB 2 ITER118,0008 T (=T —+4F :
12,0008 7T) ' ERGFRBERRPITRREER
XA

& & =X

RZE—+F+-A=-+NH ARFEZ
ME2EMNBARMSRERERE OF
INBRAR([ANEEE]) HE=F (&
FDEEBE RS Bt sIEREER
ENBEFBEETERADE REABAR
#150,000,0007T (4H & 74 #9180,000,000
BT IABRECKRRABRABE X N2
HRE - - BRBEBEBEWE 2GR EEE B
HER-_ZE—N\F+-_A=+H=2H5%
PRERZEMEZMEETANERE 2 FT
BENEFE -RN-_E—)\FENA—HZH
Al EARETEARERERZENE
ZHBEE_T_EF+ A=+t H%K
-/ I

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R M

18. LOAN RECEIVABLE (continued)

On 29 December 2017, Qianhai Guoxing entered into another
agreement with the Vendor, pursuant to which Qianhai
Guoxing has agreed to lease the abovementioned properties
back to the Vendor for a period of 3 years starting from 29
December 2017. Upon the commencement of the lease, the
Vendor paid RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,600,000) to Qianhai Guoxing as a form of non-
refundable pre-lease interest. Lease payments, calculated as
interest charged at a fixed rate of 9% per annum against a
principal of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$180,000,000), are repayable quarterly. At the end of the
lease period, upon full settlement of all outstanding principal
and interest from the Vendor to Qianhai Guoxing, the Vendor
can repurchase the subject properties from Qianhai Guoxing for

RMB1 (equivalent to HK$1).

Considering the economics of the above transaction and
the nature and value of the repurchase option, it is almost
certain that the repurchase option will be exercised. Therefore,
sale and lease back accounting does not apply to the above
arrangement, resulting in the principal of RMB150,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$180,000,000 as at 31
December 2017) being accounted for as a loan receivable with

the properties acting as a security against this receivable.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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BI)EATAREEMAMNE - HENK
BUFIEFERNIRE  WIARSEARE
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19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At fair value BAAREE
At 1 January n—A—H 383,173 358,279
Transfer from prepayment for R—IEREMEGTER
an investment property XA = 25,022
Acquired through subsidiaries FIBME D AU - 28,672
Disposal HESIR (84,391) -
Disposal through disposal of subsidiaries EBHENBRAEE
(note 29) (B 5#29) (96,481) -
Additions NE - 3,210
Currency translation differences BEMmEETE (18,996) 30,063
Change in fair value N BEHRAE (5,369) (20,866)
Transferred to assets classified as held BEESBEABEHEZ
for sale BE - (41,207)
At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 177,936 383,173
Note: et -
(a) Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment (a) RBREVMENRBERRZSE
properties
Rental income of approximately HK$4,270,000 (2017: HE-Z-/N\F+ZA=+—81
HK$3,967,000) and no direct expenses were recognised in FE REREVEREBEZERBES
profit or loss (2017: HK$301,000) for investment properties g A 494,270,000/ 5 (=T — 4 -
during the year ended 31 December 2018. 3,967,000/ 7T) Rk I E R EE R X
(ZZ—L£%F : 301,000 7T) °
(b) Non-current assets pledged as security (b) FRBEEDEFFERR

As at 31 December 2018, the investment properties of
HK$177,936,000 (2017: HK$424,380,000) were pledged for

bank borrowings (note 25).

A—E-N\FE+-_A=+—HB EE&
) %177,936,0008 T (ZZF — £ 4 :
424,380,000 7t) B K # LA EUIR 1T
BR (M at25) o

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

note: (Continued)

(o) Minimum lease receipts

Certain of the investment properties located in Yingkou city,

Liaoning province, the PRC, are leased to tenants under long-

term operating leases ranging from 1 to 10 years. Management

intends to lease the remaining investment properties to earn

rental income.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases

as follows:

19. REWE @)

Kt - (&)

(c) EURRERS

URPEEEEEOMNE TREYE
DiREERHNgERERETES - HE
HNF—=1+F EEERDBERGE
BYEARBES WA -

RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—08 ' +5%H
RS E T U R R R IE
MERBEBLEEHINOT :

20. SUBSIDIARIES

2018 2017
=E-N\F T —+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than one year —FR 387 8,841
Later than one year but not later than five years —FEBERFR 657 23,169
Later than five years AF#E 388 -
1,432 32,010
20. BT
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Group as at 31 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H80 ZEEF

December 2018 are as follows:

Place of incorporation

Particulars of issued/

Percentage of equity

BZEXEMWMBRBZHBOT :

Principal activities

Name and kind of legal entity registered share capital attributable to the Company and place of operation
2R ERMELFAEEREABRER BRT/EMRAEH ARAEEEREOL IRRBREEHY
Direct Indirect
%1 53
Rich Concept Technology Limited BVI, limited liability company 10,000 Ordinary shares of 1 US$ each 100 - Investment holding in Hong Kong
AEBRARE BROW BRAE1ET210,0008EBH REBRERR
Qianhai Shitong Supply Chain PRC, limited liability company RMB200,000,000 - 100 Trading of building materials in the PRC
(Shenzhen) Company Limited
("Qianhai Sitong")*
At ERERE (R ERAA P BREAR AR %200,000,0007T ROEEEREHHER
(TAIEtEE])
Qianhai Guoxing* PRC, limited liability company USD30,000,000 - 100 Finance leasing in the PRC
(paid up: USD15,000,000)
AEER HE ERERAA 30,000,000 REERERE
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20.

21.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation

20. BT (®)

Particulars of issued/ Percentage of equity Principal activities

Name and kind of legal entity registered share capital attributable to the Company ~ and place of operation
8 ERRAFEEREAERER BRT/ERRAEH RARAELAERAAL TEXBREERT
Direct Indirect
E% [GE3
Enviro Energy Management Services Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share 100 - Provision of management service in
Limited Hong Kong
ReEBRREERAA FE - BRRA 1RE B REBREERRS
Enviro Energy Information Technology Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share - 100 Trading of information technology
Limited related product in the PRC
RREARRAR T BRAA 1REER ROEEBEARMRHER
Enviro Energy Minerals Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company 1 Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding and trading of
base oil in the PRC
ReBEARAT & BRAF REBER R EREERRERARH
Huan Neng International PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
Trading (Yingkou) Company
Limited ("HNYK")*
BHERES(EN)ERAR E - EREAR AK%100,000,0007T REEETYERE
(MRegen))
Liaoning Taogibao Mall PRC, limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
Management Co. Ltd.
("Liaoning Taogibao")*
EERREHRERARAR PE BREEAR AE#100,000,0007C R EETHERE
(TEEhRE])
Huan Neng Industrial PRC, limited liability company RMB8,000,000 - 100 Properties investment in the PRC
(Yingkou) Company Limited
("HN Industrial”)
BHEZ(20)ERAR PE EREARE AR %8,000,0007T REEETYERE
(IReE%))
* Literal translation of the Chinese name
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21. PEARBFEHEZEE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has

entered into sales and purchase agreements to sell certain of its
investment properties with a carrying value of HK$41,207,000
comprising of 17 retail shops located at Liaohai Garden,

Bayuquan district, Yingkou city, Liaoning province, the PRC.
As at 31 December 2017, the sales of these properties were
not yet completed and as a result, they are presented as assets
classified as held for sale on the consolidated statement of

financial position. The sales of these properties were completed
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

REBEEZE—tF+ZA=+—HILHF
E -AEEFVEEHZLEEREER
41,207,000 L2 A TIREWZE - BE17
B APREELLOMKNAEREESE
BEMZEE RZZ—+tF+ZA=+—

A ZEWEZLERARTR - Bt - %
EMERGREVBRAREIN B ERE
EREZEE - REEZT—N\F+=A
=+—HLEFE  ZEVEZHEDTK -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22. EWEZER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trade receivables FEUE Z R 18,604 60,463

Less: Provision for expected credit loss B HEE BB REEEE (393) -

Trade receivables, net U E Z AR 18,211 60,463
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on REBEEZEFPZEHBERFEEREE

credit for which the credit period is generally for a period of 30

to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as

A FE

Hﬂ MR H30EBER180E 1%

AEERHERRRBEZZAR Z KRS

at the end of reporting period, based on invoice date, is as Rz BRE T -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 30 days 30HA = 60,463
31-60 days 31HZ&E60H - -
61-90 days 61HZE90H — -
91-120 days 91H=120H 1,444 -
121-150 days 121H=2150H = -
>150 days 150H A £ 16,767 -
18,211 60,463
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: FEWE Z Rz BB BN
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
At 1 January (as previously stated) R—A—B (HRRER]) = -
At 1 January (as restated) R—A—HB (BWMmE?]) 330 -
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREBEEZEZM 63 -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 393 -
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BREZFERR @
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to AEBEAEBUMEREENFESRET
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected ZBE AR TBHEERBELRREG 8
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected FERKE SERFEBEGBRERE
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based B AtEEHBEEEE BFRESER
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. ERBERGERREFE#LABAHS
The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking M -FEHEEEERNESAIEEER -
information.
Over Over Over
30 days 60 days 120 days
Current  pastdue pastdue past due Total
BE  #i\30A #EiB60R HiB120H st
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR TEx TEx TEx TExT
At 31 December 2018 R-Z-NE+=A=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHEBREEHEX - - - 2%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) FEUCREE (T L) - - - 18,604 18,604
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEB(THET) - - - (393) (393)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+—H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHERCERRX - - - -
Receivable amount (HK$'000) e A (FHT) - 60,463 - - 60,463
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BERE(TAT - - - - -
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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23. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
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23. %é v TR FRE R H Ath B WK

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—L£F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Deposits By aca 33 11
Prepayments for purchase of: BE T 2 EFHKIE
— trading materials (note i) —MHE S (W) 293,824 -
— trading materials (note ij) —MEE 5 (B 72ii) - 230,676
— others —Ht 4,672 9,390
Entrusted loan receivable FEWEZTER - 15,120
Interest receivable JE USRI 2, 9,762 -
Less: loss allowance of interest receivable B R BB IE RS (1,206) -
Consideration receivable from disposal of HESHEABIEHEEERK
assets classified as held for sale RE 49,034 -
Less: loss allowance of consideration B HEDEARKIEHERE
receivable from disposal of assets FE WA AB B R B
classified as held for sale (690) -
Consideration receivable from disposal of HEREMERKRE
investment properties 87,329 -
Less: loss allowance of consideration A DEREEER
receivable from disposal of investment REBERE
properties (809) -
Consideration receivable from disposal of an & 7] H & 1% & E UL (B
available-for-sale investment - 108,000
Other receivables H fth g W5k 8 = 512
441,949 363,709
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23.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

notes:

amounts were deposited to certain trading suppliers with which
the Group had transactions during the year ended 31 December
2018. These suppliers require the Group to make prepayments
in view of bulky purchase and short lead time in delivery and no
credit period would be granted.

On 21 June 2017, Hailanggu (defined in note 29), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, made a
prepayment of RMB79,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$94,800,000) to a supplier (“Supplier A”) for purchases of
construction materials.

On 18 August 2017, Hailanggu received a partial refund of
the abovementioned prepayment from Supplier A. On 25
August 2017, Hailanggu and Supplier A signed a supplemental
agreement and acknowledged that Hailanggu has suspended
the relevant refurbishment project but reserved the right to
utilise the prepayment at a later date.

Furthermore on 20 September 2017, the remaining balance of
prepayment due to Hailanggu of RMB77,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$93,000,000) was assigned to an
another third party (“Assignee B”) pursuant to an agreement
entered into between Hailanggu, Supplier A and Assignee B.
On 21 September 2017, Hailanggu received an amount of
RMB2,270,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,724,000)
from Assignee B, representing a partial repayment of the
prepayment. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding
prepayment amounted to RMB75,230,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90,276,000), and paid back to Hailanggu by
Assignee B on 21 March 2018.

During the period from August 2017 to November 2017, HN
Industrial, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
made five payments totalling RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$140,400,000) to a supplier (the “Aluminium
Supplier”) pursuant to an agreement dated 17 August 2017
for purchases of aluminium materials. On 20 March 2018,
the Aluminium Supplier refunded the abovementioned
balance of RMB117,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$140,400,000) to the Group.

23.

e AARERAEMER
I8 ()

Wit

ii)

BREFAAEERBE_T—)N\F
TZA=TRLEEEERSINETES
HER - ERARBERBLRERRE -
ZEREHERAREELENATE
RTEEH-

NR-BE—+EXA-+—8 BRA
(E&ERKFE29) (ARAQE —HMEE
ZEMBRAR) M—BHER ([HER
Al) B TEF 518 AR %79,000,0007T
(FEE 72 4994,800,0007 TT) A BE B 12 58
W} o

RZZF—EFNATNE  BRAK
HIERAUE] BTN IR B0 RIE
KR E—EFNA-+HA BR
REMEEARE DT hE - BR
BRACEEEAESN T2 - BRY
REFNEZR BB RZERNKA -

AN RZZT—EFNAZ+H - R
BRA  HEFARS—EBE=ZH (R
FEHB DEBEZHE BERERAM
T ka5 AR #77,500,0007T (48
& 7 #4993,000,000/87T) B8 & T X E
FB-R-_T—+HFNA=-+—H &
RABXEABUE AR #2,270,000
7T (A8 M #92,724,0005% 7T) 2 5B -
BIEMREZBAIER - R —t
F+-A=+—8B XEEBHHE
A A ARKTS5,230,0007T (FHERL
90,276,000 7T) - ER =T —NF=
AZ+—HAXEABNETERA -

WoEB—+FNRE-_Z—+t&H+—A4
R REEEE (AAAR—MBESR
EMBRRRE—HBEHA-T—+
FNA+EBEBRRBEM Z HEm—
Bt (iR Em ) EH AR
A H AE®117,000,0005T (FE R4
140,400,000/7C) - RZT—\F=A
Z+0 - BEHEFEAAEERE
“ e AR #117,000,0005T (A& R4
140,400,000/ 7T) °

BHuEBERERALA
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, BNEZRIRRHEMENIER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade payables (note) R B SRR (A aE) 3,648 56,643
Construction and other costs payables BERHMEMKAR - 3,129
Other payables H A FE A 5RIB 29,723 16,508
Receipt in advance from a customer A& PR 2 #5% 4,610 4,702
Accrued liabilities EstaE 6,323 2,641
44,304 83,623
notes: it -
The amounts are repayable according to normal credit terms of 30 to 60 BEBRFERE - RIEEH0HE60EEE -
days.
The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of reporting NMEEB  REBEBREHARZENBEIERZE
period, based on invoice date, is as follows: RAMWT
2018 2017
—%-n% s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Within 30 days 30HA 119 56,643
91-120 days 91HZ=120H 79 -
>150 days 1508 A 3,450 -
3,648 56,643
BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITER

25.

As at 31 December 2018, the analysis

of the carrying amount

RZB-NE+_A=+—H RITEXK

of bank borrowings is as follows: ZEEBES AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Current &
Bank borrowings — secured RITER—HEF 184,425 429,600
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25.

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The bank borrowing are dominated in RMB and are secured
by the Group’s investment properties, which have a carrying
amount of HK$177,936,000 (2017: HK$424,380,000) as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, these bank borrowings carried a fixed
rate ranging from 7.1% to 9.5% (2017: 7.1% to 7.5%) per
annum. The exposure of these bank borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at 31 December
2018 are one year (2017: one year).

25.

RITEF @)

BRARTERUARBFTEYHASE Y
BEMEEER ZEVWERZ—N\F
+ZA=+—HZEEEHK177,936,000
BT (ZZT—t4 1 424,380,000/ L) °

RZZE—NFE+_A=+—8  ZFRT
BEFIZETFMNENTT1%EI.5% (=F
—tFETI%ET 5% )ET B ZERTT
EFR - ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HBHmAX
B RANENTEBRIRENRR A
—F(ZE—+F:—F)o

SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of Share
shares capital
BHEE [ &N
("000) HK$'000
(F8) FET
Authorised: EIE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each M EE0.00258 T 2 L@
At 1 January 2017, 31 December R—ZT—+tF—H—8-
2017 and 31 December 2018 —ET—tF+=-A=+—H
E=F2—-NF+=ZA=+—H 20,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2017 W-ZT—+F—F—8H 7,539,944 18,850
Issuance of shares (note) BITRR D (A1) 1,507,900 3,770
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 R-E—tHF+-A=+—HK
- N\&+=-H=+—H 9,047,844 22,620

note:

On 7 November 2017, 1,507,900,000 ordinary shares were issued
at the subscription price of HK$0.13 per share by way of placement.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the placement was
approximately HK$196,027,000, with HK$3,770,000 was credited to
the share capital account and the balance of HK$192,257,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

All the above shares rank pari passu in all respects with other
shares in issue.

Bt

WZZT—+&F+—HtH"1,507,900,000%
Tk B E H NIZRBEER013BLE
T ARRAREEMBZFBRIBFENA
196,027,000/% 7T & #3,770,0007% 7T 2 5t A
B ACBR - T #2%E192,257,0007% 7T BIIE 5T A BR 15
HER -

LA BEBDNAABE D EEEMEEITR
NEBREFHL -

BHuEBERERALA
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145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nﬂ'\mzjﬁ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

27.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Following the disposal of Aces Diamond, the holding company
of BHE and GM on 31 October 2017, the Board decided to
discontinue the operation of natural resources and energy
related business and information technology and related
business in December 2017.

(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued

27.

B LEE R
RZE—tF+ A=+ —HHEEBHER
GME’\HI A TlAces Diamondi% - EF &
RER_ZT—tF+= ARIEEERA
BRNRMBEERAREANRE RAE
EY a0

(a) ERIEREXZHR XA

Operations o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Revenue PN = 4,697
Cost of sales 65 B AR - (4,560)
Gross profit EF = 137
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note (i)) & BB A B 2 B8 (B 7E3)) = (43,182)
Loss before taxation from discontinued ERIEEEEB 2 BRBIAIEE
operations - (43,045)
Income taxation P18 _ _
Loss for the year from discontinued ERIESEEBFEEERE
operations - (43,045)
Note (i): B ) -

On 31 October 2017, the Group disposed the entire equity interest of
Aces Diamond and its subsidiaries to an independent third party for
a consideration of HK$1. Aces Diamond is the intermediate holding
company of the GM and the holding company of BHE, which holds
a mining permit for a marble site covering approximate 33 hectares
at Selenrang, Bontoa, Maros Regency in South-western Sulawesi,
Indonesia. The mining properties were fully impaired during the year
end 31 December 2016.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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#IMarostiBontoafySelenrangd #J33 A B KIB A RS 2

TREFR &

cRRBWMERBE_T-—RFT_A

=t—HILFEERERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B EmRMEE

27.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 27. ERIERERXRHT @)
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued (a) BERIEREXK 2XE
Operations(Continued) oW ()
The aggregated net liabilities at the date of disposal were as REEBBZEAEFHENT
follows:
HK$'000
FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 22
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B TARFRIE K it & KA 78
Cash and cash equivalent ReRFEEEY 36
Trade payable ERE SRR (231)
Other payables E b B 5RIB (7,860)
Less: Non-controlling interests A IR 2,789
Net liabilities disposed of FrEBEFE (5,166)
Add: Translation reserve released upon disposed m: AEERBARIERE ZHEHKE
subsidiaries 566
Add: Other reserve released upon disposal of m: PEENBARIREEL Z i
subsidiaries (Note (ii)) (B 3G ) 47,782
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT ZEE 43,182
HK$'000
FHEIT
Net proceeds received from disposal of subsidiaries & & & A B4 EL 2 BT 15 3% 18 % 58 -
Satisfied by: RTFHEREZM:
Cash consideration RBeRE -
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries: REHEHBARZFREESRE :
Cash consideration received Fr U B3R & R (& -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FTEEReRRESEFEY (36)
(36)
Note (ii): B &)

Other reserve represented 13,500,000 outstanding warrants of GM, an

indirect subsidiary of Aces Diamond.

H A % # 5 GM (Aces Diamondz — B EZEMHEB A &) 2
13,500,00017 K17 FRAXHEFE -

BHuEBERERALA
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27. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS(Continued) 27. BRIEREER @)
(b) Analysis of cash flows (b) WEREDH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT AT
Operating cash outflows KER M - (14,885)
28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. WHEKE A T

On 3 January 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Haida (defined in note 29) for a consideration of
RMB24,650,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,063,000).
No material acquisition related costs were incurred in the
acquisition. Before the acquisition by the Group, Haida has no
business activities except for holding of investment properties.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the acquisition of Haida did not constitute a business
combination but an acquisition of assets. The effect of the
acquisition was summarised as follows:

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

RZE—+F—A=H AEBEKETE
(F& A M7E29) 2100%0%#E - REAA
R #24,650,0007T (#8E M 49 27,063,000
BIL) c BB E EEE XKW EAE
RS o RIS BIKIER] - BRIFBIREY
OB EWEAMERETE - At - &
NAEERAE  WESEXTENE BE
Bt - BRI EE - WE w2t
™

RUBRMZEWBEERCHRAME

acquisition:
HK$'000
FHET
Investment properties (note 19) wEWME(HE19) 28,672
Other payable H A FE A FRIB (1,609)
27,063

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a subsidiary:

RUBHHZERBEERCRIAE:

HK$'000

FH&T

Consideration paid in cash 2ReNRE (27,063)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired s Re RBESEED -
(27,063)
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29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

29. HEWEAR

In August 2018, the Group entered into the First Equity (a) RZFBE-—NFNA AEBFTIE
Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which the Group — I IREEREGE B AEE
agreed to transfer Target Capital | (i.e. 50% equity FRIEEEmZE Bt XEERE
interest in Yingkou Hailanggu Travel Co., Limited (literal o B2 E AR & 08 R AR
translation of the Chinese name of % CRAIKEAR HEHRAEDERA]Z50%MK )
FR7A 8], “Hailanggu"”) to an independent third party at TRBUE=T  RERARYE
a consideration of RMB1. On the same date, the Group 1L REH NEBFZE=MN
entered into the Second Equity Transfer Agreement, IRt R Bt AEBRE
pursuant to which the Group agreed to transfer Target EZAZEANI(AERAZHT
Capital Il (i.e. the remaining 50% equity interest in S50%KEOT R —BEILE=T7
Hailanggu) to another independent third party at a RERARE T -
consideration of RMB1.
The net liabilities at the date of disposals were as REERBZAaBEFENT
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
Investment property wEYE 68,419
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 3
Accrual and other payables FE 5T B B K H th & 5/ I8 (17,275)
Bank borrowing RITEMX (59,198)
Net liabilities disposed of EREaEFE (8,051)
Less: Translation reserve released upon disposal RN EERBE I EREE (1,309)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB AT 2 s (9,360)
Net proceeds received from disposal of a subsidiary & & —RWE A B KE 2 FT15
RIEFEE -
Satisfied by: RTHERXZM:
Cash consideration BRERE -
Net cash outflow from disposal KEREFEZFHRE MM
Cash consideration received Fr i B R & KB -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FFHEREMASEED (3)
3)
REBEBRZRERDR

T \FFR
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29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. HEKHEB QT @)

(b) In May 2018, the Group entered into a sale and (b)
purchase agreement with an independent third party,

R-_ZE—NFRA AEFHEH—
EBUE=-HILEEHE
BUHAEEREULRBEARKE
24,000,0007T & % B 12 & 21 (8]
REODBEVMERBEERAD A
([FE]) 2100%0H#) - KB A
A BR#24,000,0007C (HEE R L
27,352,0007T) °

pursuant to which the Group agreed to transfer Target
Capital Il (100% equity interest in Yingkou Haida
Property Service Company Limited (literal translation
of the Chinese name of @ HFEWERBEERA
A] “Haida”) at a consideration of RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,352,000).

RHEHREEFHEOAT

The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
FHET
Investment property wEYE 28,062
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 28
Other receivables H YR IE 8,353
Accruals and other payables FEEt B K E fh &~ 5RA (7,122)
Net assets disposed of P EBEEFHE 29,321
Less: Translation reserve released upon disposal W R ERBEH 2B ERE (1,812)
Consideration RE (27,352)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEBAGZEE 157
Net proceeds received from disposal of a subsidiary B H & E A aIYE 2 FT15 I8 558 27,352
Satisfied by: UTFHERXNEZM:
Cash consideration BERKE 27,352
Net cash inflow from disposal REHESEZERESR
Cash consideration received P EBR & R (& 27,352
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FIEEReRREFEY (28)
27,324
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30. CASH FLOW INFORMATION - FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

This section sets out the movement of liabilities from financing
activities for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

30.

ReRBERN-BEEH

AERIBE-E—N\FR-F—+F
toASt—BEEEREREEDAE
P2 TR

Liabilities from financing activities

REREZBHZAE
Loan from
Shareholder's a related Interest Bank
loan company payable  borrowings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REBE

RREX LRAZER ERFE RTER st
TAR TER TER TER TER
As at 1 January 2017 nZZ—+&—-A—H - - - 180,884 180,884
Cash inflows HamA 2,000 240,000 - 410,863 652,863
Cash outflows Remt - (177,669) (21,521) (183,382) (382,572)
Non-cash movements-interest charge FRLEY-FIRER - - 21,521 - 21,521
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEFE - - - 21,235 21,235

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1—H
and 1 January 2018 “Z-)\#—-H—H 2,000 62,331 - 429,600 493,931
Cash inflows BeRA 2,200 - - - 2,200
Cash outflows Befd - (62,331) (21,408) (185,977) (269,716)

Non-cash movements - disposal of FREEY - HEMB LA

a subsidiary - - - (59,198) (59,198)
Non-cash movements - interest charge FRLEH-FEER - - 21,408 - 21,408
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E+_A=+-H 4,200 - - 184,425 188,625
REEBRERERAT

T \FFR
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

On 25 January 2003 and 12 May 2011, share option
schemes (“2003 Share Option Scheme” and “2011
Share Option Scheme”, respectively) were approved
and adopted pursuant to resolutions of the Company.
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme and
2011 Share Option Scheme was to enable the Group
to recognise the contribution of the participants to the
Group and to motivate the participants to continue
working for the benefit of the Group by offering the
participants an opportunity to have personal interest
in the share capital of the Company. The Board may,
at its discretion, grant share options to any employees,
consultants and advisers of the Company or its
subsidiaries, including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The 2003 Share Option Scheme
and 2011 Share Option Scheme remain in force for a
period of ten years with effect from 25 January 2003
and 12 May 2011, respectively.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company,
or may not exceed a maximum of 30% should the
shareholders of the Company renew the 10% limit,
from time to time which have been duly allotted and
issued.

The exercise price for shares under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme may
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
but in any event will be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares
on the date of grant of the option.
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cContinued)

(a)

(Continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates,
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant and
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company at the date of grant in excess
of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
In addition, any share options granted to any one
person in excess of 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time, in any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The share options granted may be exercised at any time
or times during a period to be determined and notified
by the Board which period of time shall commence
after the date of grant of the share options and expire
on such date as determined by the Board in any event
no later than 10 years from the date of the grant of
such share options. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of a share option
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme and 2011 Share
Option Scheme.

31.

BRERE )

(a)

(%)

AR+ @A B - E R TA
NAEBRRKIBIIFNITE B R
FRBESEZHEATHER
o WRERE L BAETEBALR
NAIEBEITIRG0.1%XIEREE
HHEIARRARRMHW T BT EBER
385,000,000/ 7T © 9 4 H F SR
AR A& AR AL - o - R
Efa]+ = 1 B EARS 1% FAEM A L HB
BAR MM ETRM1%
BT R - BRI R
KNGO o

ERENBRETREESRE R
AR HEARRTE - ZHER
BB B RS YRES
Eﬁimﬁﬁfﬁ ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%
BENRLBERBEREER
aH'i *ETJ?—?ZOOB@E%Hx%EJr%J&
201 FRBARMERT &) - AR B
BREAS BT RRBANE -

BHuEBERERALA
T \FFR

153



No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R M

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 31. BRETE @)

(b) Movements in the number of share options outstanding (b) REBEE_ZE—"NFER_ZE—LF
and their weighted average exercise prices for the years FTZA=F+—HIEFE  HKRTE
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: ERESE REMEEHITEEZ

ZEm

Weighted average

exercise price Outstanding
(per share) options
INHEF 15
T1E(E CENGN
(&) g e
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2017 R-—ZE—+F—HA—H 0.37 265,621,624
Lapsed [ 0.46 (1,631,757)
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-A=1+—~H 0.37 263,989,867
Lapsed B Rk 0.34 (10,641,892)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H 0.37 253,347,975
Share options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FRZZE—+F+H
and 2017 have the following expiry dates and exercise =t+—BmARITEBREZERR
prices: RATHEENT :

Outstanding

Adjusted options as
Exercise price at 31 December
(per share) 2017
RZTE—tF
+=-—A=+—8
KHEITEE i R AT
(SH) pd
HK$
Expiry date fE i B BT
15 June 2019 (note 2) ZE-NFRATRB (#H2) 0.51 28,378,379
6 October 2019 (note 2) ZE-NFETANBKi22) 0.53 496,622
4 February 2020 (note 2) —T-TF_ANAB (Kiz2) 0.36 74,138,514
8 July 2020 (note 3) ZEZTFLANR (H3) 0.39 90,597,973
22 June 2021 (note 4) —E-—®FXA=+=H
(H1:t4) 0.31 69,314,190
30 December 2022 (note 4) —E-ZF+=ZHA=1H
(Hiit4) 0.11 1,064,189
263,989,867
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 31. fBRESE @)
(b) (Continued) (b) (4&)
Outstanding
Adjusted options as
Exercise price at 31 December
(per share) 2018
RZE—NF
+-A=+—H
KRR ITEE i ARITE
(&8) 2 B e
HK$
Expiry date fEim B BT
15 June 2019 (note 2) ZE-NEFEANATRAB (KE2) 0.51 28,378,379
6 October 2019 (note 2) —NF+ANA B t2) 0.53 496,622
4 February 2020 (note 2) ZZE-TFZAMA (Hi2) 0.36 71,300,676
8 July 2020 (note 3) _?_?fﬁtﬂ)\a (H17E3) 0.39 87,760,135
22 June 2021 (note 4) —E-—HFXAZ+=H
(Ht&E4) 0.31 64,347,974
30 December 2022 (note 4) —E-—_F+=-A=+H
(H1it4) 0.1 1,064,189
253,347,975
notes: Vo
1. The exercise price of share options was adjusted upon 1. BREZITEEERARQF

the subdivision of shares of the Company which came
to effect on 29 August 2007 and completion of an
open offer with effect from 17 November 2014.

Regarding the share options granted on 19 June
2008, 15 June 2009, 6 October 2009 and 4 February
2010, 50% of which shall be exercised in a period
commencing two years from the date of grant and
expiring on the tenth anniversary from the date of
grant. The balance of 50% of the share options shall
be exercised in a period commencing three years from
the date of grant and expiring on the tenth anniversary
from the date of grant.

Regarding the share options granted on 9 July
2010, 50% of which shall be exercised in a period
commencing two years from the date of grant and
expiring on the date falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant. The balance
of 50% of the share options shall be exercised in a
period commencing three years from the date of grant
and expiring on the date falling one day preceding the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

BHF@AR =TT LFNA
ZTABEBRAFBEER =
T—mFE+—A+ERAZKE
EL A% -

ﬁﬁfvvﬂﬁﬂﬂ+na

—EFZHNFAA+HRHE ZZ
ZAE+ARNBR-_ZE—ZF
Z—ANBEREZERENE
HAR50%A A% BB
FRITE - WHRERE BB
WTFEZBIEM - #T50%H
R R Rl AR H B HA18 = AR At
ERLABHERTFEZB IS
M7

BR-_ZE—TFLANBEY
ZEBEmMS  EP50%0 R
B BB MERTE I
LB SR TR —A
fE i ° 8 T 50%0E PR #E A A 1%
B AR = FRTE - TR
B ASRTTRF—AE
o

BHuEBERERALA
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31.

T 75 R 2% M 5

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

4. Regarding the share options granted on 23 June
2011 and 31 December 2012, 50% of which shall be
exercised in a period commencing one year from the
date of grant and expiring on the date falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.
The balance of 50% of the share options shall be
exercised in a period commencing two years from the
date of grant and expiring on the date falling one day
preceding the tenth anniversary from the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there was no share-based payment expense in relation
to share options granted to employees and non-
employees of the Group.

The fair value of the services received by the Group is
measured by the reference to the fair value of the share
options granted as consideration because the fair value
of the services cannot be measured reliably.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2018
had a weighted average remaining contractual life of
2.54 years (2017: 3.54 years).

If options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed, the
related share option reserve will be transferred directly
to profit or loss.

At 31 December 2018, the Company had 253,347,975
(2017: 263,989,867) share options outstanding
under the share option schemes, which represented
approximately 2.8% (2017: 2.9%) of the Company’s
shares in issue at that date. Share options do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited
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RS E a)

(b)

(%)
Wi (%)

4. MR =ZZE——F<A=+=H
E=E—=—F+=-RA=+—8H
REHBEREMNS - HH50%
AREE B R —FRT
- WRED BBRES
Al — B Em o 8 T50% 8 iz 1
AR E B R RERTT
- WREL BEBRES
Ai—BJER -

REE-ZZ—\FER_ZT—+tF
TZA=t+—BLFE  HEET
TREERE RIEREZERES
o RN

BN IRT 2 A A BEEAR A
B HARBEREHZRBEZAA
EBEDZSEERRERH ZBRE

ZAREBENE

RZZE—/\F+ZA=+—HHRK
TEZEREZ MEFEEHRTELY
FHAE254F (ZF—+4F :3.54
F) o

i B P R S B ol R SR 4R MK -
FHBERERESEEEREEE
RZZE—tEtF+=A=+—
H AXRARIBEBRESESE
253,347,975 (ZF — & :
263,989,86717) & I M KR 1T
F -HERARARZBZE
BTN HI2.8% (Z T —+F:
2.9%) o BRI M TRE AR
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32.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(a)

Employee retirement benefit

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under the control
of trustees. The retirement benefit cost for the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents contributions paid to the fund by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss of approximately HK$151,000 (2017:
HK$259,000) represents contributions paid to these
schemes by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group contributed to certain retirement benefit
schemes based on the wages for the year of those
employees in the PRC. The total cost charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss of
approximately HK$132,000 (2017: HK$150,000)
represented the social insurance expenses paid in the
PRC by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018

32. EEEAMAX

(a)

& 53R K& R

AEBRMAETEREZRERE
TrTE c BERSF B EEEANE
BSXFEAEN 2 EEDFRE -
RiFEBERNIR 2R E T E
BARBAKAEAEEIZBESS
ERAUEEZLEERNEEINZ

{\TAO

RigeiEm R MR 2 EKEAL
151,000 0 (=& —+ F :
259,000/ 7T) @ BIAEEREE
T-NF+-A=+—HIIFED
MZETE A 2R -

AEEREFREENFHTHET
RREFEEER - sREBRR
B B9 Ak AN 42 %8 49132,000/8 7T (=
T —+4F : 150,000/ JT) 1E AN &
BBz —N\F+=_A=+—
HIEFERTFRENZESREH
io
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 32.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two (2017:
five) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group were directors of the Company, whose
emolument are disclosed in note 39.

Details of the emoluments of the three individual for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are as follow:

EEEFRX @
(b) EUBSFHFMAL

RBE_T-N\F+_A=1+—H
HFE  AEESRSHFHMOREA
T WEBE(CE—EF AR)A
ITRARAES  HMS O R E
39 o

BE_Z- \F+-A=t+—AL
FE- ﬁﬂP:%/\iE’\J@HéﬁﬁlﬁﬁD

™

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—LF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowance and other benefits e EUREMETR 1,532 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {KiE | 5T & it 2 32 -
1,564 -

The emoluments were within the following bands: &N F AT 4R -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAH EEA#
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0007% 7T 3 -

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EREEALRS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33.

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel
compensation

Key management includes executive directors of the
Company, financial controllers and company secretary
of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

EREALTRS @)
(a) TEEEBEAEHE

TEEBEAEREARANTE
E UBBEERARWE - HES
RISCNRENETEERABZR
BT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits %% - 285 & H 12 F 2,968 4,788
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & (K 1& F| 5t 2 £t 2k 65 122
3,033 4,910
Shareholder’s loan (b) BERER

On 5 October 2017, the Company entered in to a
shareholder loan agreement with Mr. Li Sen with a
facility amount of HK$100,000,000. The Company draw
an accumulated loan amount of HK$4,200,000 (2017:
HK$2,000,000) as at 31 December 2018. The loan was
interest free, unsecured and repayable at the end of
eighteenth month from the date of drawdown which
was classified as current liability (2017: non-current
liability) in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018. The loan was
denominated in HK$ and approximated to its fair value.

RZZE—+tF+ARAB  AnaEH
EREETIRRERGE - #E
%4 /4100,000,0007% 7T » &R A A7
RZZE-—NFE+ZA=+—HIEW
25T EHE%4,200,0008 L (= F
—+4F : 2,000,000 7C) - ZER
RRE - EmEHRARERB R
AT \ERAKRzBEER KT
—NFE+-A=+—B2HEA%E
EAaBERABEARBAE(ZE
—tFERBDEAE) cHERD
BATTHE  HEEEHEQAREE
B -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. AREEAXTRSZ @)

(Continued)

(c) In addition to those disclosed () BRHEEHBKBEREZTEHRE
elsewhere in the consolidated financial EH REAEBRHEER
statements, related party transaction, FETZEBEEALIRS
which was carried out in the normal mh
course of the Group’s business, was as
follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of goods to Shenyang Oriental [MShenyang Oriental
Ginza Pullman Hotel Management Ginza Pullman Hotel
Company Limited (literal translated of Management
the Chinese name), a related company Company Limited
which was controlled by Mr. Li Sen (?Mf‘ﬁi? 2
BMELNR)HEEM 27 2,348
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. REMERARE

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments RBEHR - ARERRET AT HEHELE

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HERBRFKEESRIE L AZENATAH

operating leases which fall due as follows: s At
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FN 3,036 3,372
After one year but within five years —FEHEERFA 2,662 6,799
5,698 10,171

As at 31 December 2018, operating lease payments represent RZE-NFF+ZA=+—HLEHER

rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties BEEAEEREAETHAZEMEREN A

for lease terms ranging from one to two years (2017: one to & HEMNT—EMF(ZT—LF:

three years). —E=4) o
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35.

36.

37.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2017: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018,
significant contingent liabilities (2017: nil).

the Group did not have any

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a convertible
bonds subscription agreement for the issue of 15% convertible
bonds due 2020 with the third party in the principal amount of
HK$50 million which are convertible into 844,594,595 shares
upon conversion of the convertible bonds at the exercise price
of HK$0.0592 per share. Up to the date of this report, the
issue of convertible bonds is not completed. Details of the issue
of convertible bonds are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 January 2019.

35.

36.

37.

EARERE

RZE-NF+-A=+—08 AEEYL
BEMERERAE(ZT—1HF: E) -

HAREE

RZBE-NF+ZA=+—0 AEEY
BEMNEARKARBE(ZT—LF &) -

BEHMRERSEH

Z-NF—A=+—8 X217
%4% Ewﬁﬁ_7_yiﬂﬁw%
AMBREF LI RRESFRE
7K %8 /550,000,000 7T © LAITEESRK
0.0592B THR A IRMKRESREAIEILRR
844,594,595/% I 10 - Bl E A E A E

AAREHEITHARTK c BREEITAIHR
REH 2B %ZEAHHHE:EE—jLi—H
=+ —HZEARERM -

BHuEBERERALA
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. HMIBMARRELQAREEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the () XATR=-ZE—NEFE+=
Company as at 31 December 2018 B=t—H2ZHHERRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z®mE - -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BfY /BB R B3R IR 437,064 388,440
Deposits, prepayments and other e BARIEREAm
receivables FE U I 932 669
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 305 20,947
,,,,,,,,,,, 438301 | 410,056
Total assets EEHRE 438,301 410,056
EQUITY EE
Capital and reserves attributable to Z&2AF#EE AEL
owners of the Company EERAREHE
Share capital B& 22,620 22,620
Other reserves R | 372,831 | 382,078
Total equity fEmess | 395451 | 404,698
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables E@FEH%’UQ 4,467 2,255
Shareholder’s loan BREER 4,200 _
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL NGIE S 34,183 3,103
Total liabilities &EEE 42,850 | 5358
Total equity and liabilities ERREERSE 438,301 410,056
The statement of financial position has been approved WHARKEEETER S —NF

by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and is

signed on its behalf by:

Li Sen
=&

Director

BF
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(b)

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. UBMRRRRARAFEEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE (#)
COMPANY (continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) AT FEEZD
Share
Share Capital  options Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REE EARE BRERE HtHE ZitER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T THL T THL THr i
As at 1 January 2017 WZE—tF—-f—H o 79707011}5{5 77777777 8]} 777777 6 781972747 o 7379711571757 o 7(97497,77017) N 4W2,064
Comprehensive loss 2EFSE
Loss for the year FREE T T S - (aag06) (221,806)
Transactions with owners in BREEANEEAZ
their capacity as owners SRETZRS
Lapse of options (note 31(b)) BREXRHE310) - - (437) - - (437)
Issuance of new shares BIMRD (Hit26)
(note 26) 192,257 - - - - 192,257
Total transactions with owners in ~ HEFAUNEEALZ
their capacity as owners SETZIR GBS 192,257 - (437) - - 191,820
As at 31 December 2017 W_E—+&+-A=+-H 1,092,712 871 68,487 391,515 (1,171,507) 382,078
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\§-F-H | 71,7079721771727 7777777 811 777777 b: ?ll!iij o 7379717,571757 B 7(717,177717,570777)7 ) 382,078
Comprehensive loss 2AFSR
Loss for the year fEER | S S S S 0.247)  (9.247)
Transactions with owners in BREANEEAZ
their capacity as owners SHETZRS
Lapse of options (note 31(b)) BIRERW(ME310) - - (2,499) - 2,499 -
Total transactions with ownersin ~ EEBANEEAZ
their capacity as owners SNETZIR5EE - = (2,499) = 2,499 -
As at 31 December 2018 R-EB-NE+=A=1-H 1,092,712 871 65,988 391,515 (1,178,255) 372,831
BHuEBERERALA
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EERAMEESR

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

The remuneration of every director and chief executive

is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

() EERESTHRABZMH
HEFREETHARZHMRT
|

BE-Z-N\F+ZA=+—-HL
FE:

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—RALRERES (BRAKAAIHNEANEK 2 ES) L RBCEINIERZME

Salaries, Employer's
allowance  contribution
Directors’ and other to pension  Share-based  Discretionary
fees benefits scheme payments bonus Total
Fe 2ER Bkt MR B
Bshd HitEH LS XfHRE B h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR TEr TiEn TiEn TiEn TiER
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Li Sen EH%E - 621 11 - - 632
Mr. Wei Junging REELE - 416 10 - - 426
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng (CEO) REERE (RER) - 292 7 - - 299
Mr. Zhang Yuanging RLELE
(Resigned on 23 January 2018) (R=B-N\F
—-AZ+=ZHET) - 74 2 - - 76
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEE
Mr. Wen Guan Wei WHELE 190 - - - - 190
Mr. Chiang Bun BHAE(RZE-NE
(resigned on 30 August 2018) NAZTRET) 100 - - - - 100
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine 2BEL+ (R-E-N\E
(resigned on 23 January 2018) —BZ+=RE&H) 9 - - - - 9
Dr. Hou chaohui GEEEL
(appointed on 30 August 2018) (RZZ-NENA=TH
EZH) 91 - - - - 91
Mr. Jiang Maolin ZEMEE
(appointed on 25 October 2018) (R=B-\E+A-t+ER
BZM) 50 - - - - 50
Dr. Chiao Li Biufdt
(appointed on 25 January 2018 and (W =Z—-\F—-A-1HA
resigned on 25 October 2018) BEAYR-Z-N\EF+4
Z+HBE) 131 - - - - 131
Total @ 571 1,403 30 - - 2,004
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Mr. Li Sen has been appointed as the CEO on 23 January 2018.

Dr. Chiao Li has been appointed as the Independent Non-

executive Director on 23 January 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

39. EEENERER @

FRELER-_ZE-N\F—-A-+=H
BRERTHRAEER -

ByELtER T N\F—A=+=H
BEZAERBIIFNITES -

BE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HILF
=g

Emoluments paid to or receivable by the person in respect of a person’s services

as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

—EATHEAES (ERARAAIENBLAAEB ES) L RBEEX AL 2 M

Salaries, Employer's
allowance contribution
Directors' and other to pension Share-based  Discretionary
fees benefits scheme payments bonus Total
Hé 2ER BAReiE SARR (7
ok EtbiER EEHT A BERL it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Sen PREE(RZE—LF
(Appointed on 15 September 2017) NA+RBEZE) - - - - - -
Mr. Wei Junging REEAERZE—LF
(Appointed on 15 September 2017) NATHREZE) - - - - - _
Mr. Zhou Xuesheng BAEERE(RZE—+F
(Appointed on 7 November 2017) +-AtBEZA) - - - - - -
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul BRREE(R-T—tF
(Resigned on 15 September 2017) ANATERER) - 743 37 - - 780
Mr. Zhang Yuanging (Co-CEO) RUELE(BETRER)
(Resigned on 23 January 2018) (M=Z-N\E
—RZ+t=HE1) - 1,300 18 - - 1,318
Mr. Lai Ming Wai PHEAE(RZT—+F
(Resigned on 15 September 2017) NATHAEE) - 372 18 - - 390
Mr. Zhu Lijia RUFAE(R-Z—tF
(Resigned on 1 August 2017) NA—BE) - 770 11 - - 781
Mr. Pu Wei (Co-CEO) BREL(BETRER)
(Appointed on 11 January 2017 (R=T—+5F-A+-H
and Resigned on 7 November 2017) EZARA-T—+5&
T-AtREE) - 794 14 - - 808
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wen Guan Wei NHERERZT—tF
(Appointed on 25 August 2017) NAZTHBEZRA) 53 - - - _ 53
Mr. David Tsoi (Retired on 15 June 2017) ER#& %4 (R-T—+F
NATHBRA) 69 - - - - 69
Mr. Chiang Bun BRxs 150 - - - - 150
Ms. Leung Pik Har, Christine ZEETT(RZT-N\F
(Resigned on 23 January 2018) —H_‘ILHE#E) 150 - - - - 150
Total it 422 3,979 98 - - 4,499
REERZERERQA

—E-N\FEH
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to directors
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil) by
a defined benefit pension plan operated by the Group in
respect of the services as a director of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

(c) Director’'s termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was
no board resolution to early terminate of the director’s
appointment in office (2017: nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for
making available of director’s services during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
arrangement in relation to loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of the directors of the Company,
the controlled bodies corporate by and the connected
entities with such director (2017: nil)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(f)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 33, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to Group's
business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year (2017:
nil).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFHBHRE

The consolidated results, and assets and liabilities of the Group from
both continuing and discontinued operations for the last five financial

years are summarised below.

BUETRAEPRFE  AEBERBHELLEEY
REKILEEEBZGAE  BEMBEMGD
T o

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+—-BHLHFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
-0\ | ZT—+F ZZT-RFE ZT-hF —T-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET TET THET TET
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets BERSE 813,900 1,185,302 641,151 536,901 1,156,289
Total liabilities BERE 238,109 582,064 209,798 110,730 241,027
Capital and reserves AARHA AEEER 575,791 603,238 434,142 377,452 626,642
attributable to owners of the N #E
Company
Results 4
Revenue g 885,871 59,228 184,595 13,171 1,043
Loss for the year attributable to ~ AA R HEE AEEENER (14,531) (93,900) (34,849) (44,720) (84,831)

owners of the Company
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